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HPE'S VISION, MISSION
AND VALUES

Our Vision Our Mission
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Our Values

© Care .

concern @ Professionalism

We do our work with

We show expert knowledge and skills

care and concern
for the wellbeing
of our staff and all

Singapore residents

— We treat everyone
® Integrity ——
We maintain a
high standard of ethics
and manage resources =
responsibly _ @
L ]
© Innovation

We constantly seek
new and better 5
to promote heal

\
& Commitment

We are committed
to do our best
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

The Journey to
Good Health

©® The health
promotion
Journey is a
never-ending
but immensely
rewarding one.
Getting people to
adopt healthier
lifestyles. while
a complex and
ongolng challenge,
pushes us to keep
Innovating our
approaches. 99

Im 2016, the Health Promation Board (HPB)
marked 15 years of Impacting the llves of
SIngaporeans, embedding healthy ving Into
everyday Iife. In April 2077, | also concluded

my elghith and last wear serving as Chalrman

of the Board. Looking back at the journsy, 1 am
proud at how far we have come In encourRging
Singaporeans to e healthy

Success in health promotion

From health education to Increass awareness

and health Itemcy, to shaping the emvircnment

to affect Singaporeans’ Itestyles and chalces, the
haalth promaotion joumey has been a dynamic and
fnutiful one.

Under our Food Strategy, we hiave made notable
achlewements In Influencing Singaporeans'’ dietary
consumpticn and purchases. As part of our
effarts, the Healthler Cholce Symbol Is one of

the most recegnised and pervasive symbols In
Singapere toeday, This visual Identifer has been
helping consurmers make Informed choloes during
grocery shopping.

Im partnership with food and bevemge
eskabilishmeants, aur Healthler Dinlng Programme
has also grown. Ther Is now an Increasing
number of Icwer-calorle and healthler Ingredient
meal optons for Singaporeans when they eat out

‘We also rolled cut Singapore's first pedometear-
and-app based programme to encourage
Singaporeans to lead active lirestyles.

The natlon-wide Maticnal Steps Challenge™
mbllized an unprecedented halfa milllion
Singaporesns to take mone steps and move more.

Wia continues to affect the emvironments

where Slngaporeans work, Ive and play to
provide seamless access to health-promoting
Inftizthves. At workplaces, we reach out to our
wiorktoroe through customised workplace health
programmes. In childcare centres and schools,
children and youth beneftt from access to
healthler meals. Within the community, we bring
Singaporeans together In communal spaces for
regular fres exerclse sesslons.

Evolving our approach

The hiealth promation joumey 15 & never-ending
but Imimenssly ewarding one. Getting psople to
adapt heatthier litestyles, while a complex and
angaolng challenge, pushes us to keep Innowvating
ouIr approachas.

Pressing health challenges also bring to the

fore the Importance of preventive action. Like
many developed and affluent countries, chronlc
disesses, such as diabetes, are a growing problem
In Singapore. We also need to manage a mpldly
agelng population. Against this backdmop, we
nesad to ensure that our Inttativas remain effective
In addressing Singapore’s health concemns.

one of the ways we have evohled has been our
approach to health promotion. HPB has b=en an
eafly adepter of behavioural economics In the
public sector. We have shifted our appreach from
education and awarenass bullding to apphying
bshavioural Insights to Influence [ifestyle cholcas.

Prowviding Instant rewards for selecting a healthler
meal, rallying peer support and sockal network
systems, persanallsing prograss reports and
Installing visual cues are zome of the nudges we
hawe Introduced with success.

As Singaponeans becorne more tech-savwy and
conrectad In the digital waorld, HPE has aleoe found
wiays to keep health messages and Informatian
top-of-mind. Leversging technology, the HeatthHub
portal provides Singaporeans with 24/7 access to
perscnalised medcal records and & sute of
health-related content. Mew festures continue to
b= added to extend the usefulness of the portal as
a digital companion for healthy [keing.

Shaping a healthy nation

in rry time with HPB, | have seen many committed
Individuals who have contrbuted to these
advancements In health promotion - our partners
across the public and private sectors, our Board of
Directors and of course, our staff. Thelr collacthee
effort has enabled us to encourage more and
more Singaporeans to Ive healthy, | am proud to
hawve been part of this jourrey:

Lockng ahead, HPE will nesd to continually
despen ks engagement with Singaporeans to
Influence cholces, extend Its collabomtion with
partners to Increase the reach of Initlatives, and
rermaln Innovathee In inding ways to shape the
naticn's health. | wish HPB continued success as It
forges ahesd In ks mission.

A

Lucas Chow
Chairman
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CEO'S MESSAGE

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Shaping
Behaviours for a
Healthy Nation

&& Over the years, the
Health Promotion Board
has ralsed the ante
on health-promoting
efforts. from Informing
Singaporeans about living
healthy to influencing
sustalnable behaviour
change. In designing
and implementing
Initiatives, we have
sought to understand
what motivates behaviour
change and how
Singaporeans respond to
different environments
and Incentives. +9%

Health promotion has an Integral role In
Singapore’s move beyond healthcare to health,
Ower the years, the Health Promotion Board (HPE)
has med the ante on health-promoting effarts,
from Informing Singaporeans about Iving healthy
to Influencing sustainable behaviour change.

Im designing and Implementing Initiatives, we have
sought to understand what motivates bebaviour
change and how Singaporeans respond to
differant environments and Incenthwes.

Preventing the onset of disease

The unwavering focus on health promotion stems
from the need o mitigate womrying health concems.,
This Includes the Increasing rate of chronkc dissases In
Singapone, such as dabetes. Without any Intereention,
an estimated ons milllon Sngaporears will ba
suffering from disbetes by 2050,

Imi 2006, HPB worked with the Ministry of Health

to rally Singaporsans In @ natkormwide call to fight
diabetes. We engaged Singaporeans from all walks
of life on what moere can be done In preventing and
managing the dissase. Over 2,000 Singaporeans
responded with views on healthy eating, physical
actiwity and health screening.

Shifting behaviours
shaping habits

Agalnst a growing awaren=ss on the mportancs of
heslthy Iving, HPE has continued to Inkensity efforts
to turm healthy IMing Intentions Into sctions.

‘We expanded our Influence on Singaporeans’
dietary cholces, growing the number of heatthler
meals served by food and beversge outlets by
thres-fold, ower three years. Today, some 26 million
healthler meals are being served to Singaporeans
by the 1,600 partners on board our Healthier
Cining Programmie.

The nurnber of peckaged food products in
suparmarkets and retall cutlets carmying the
Healthiler Cholke Symbol has ako risen to 3,000
across 70 food categores. This wikdens the
chiolces for Singaporeans, making it easler to
chioose hieatthy

A5 a key member of the national Murturess
Taskforce formed In 2016, responsible for Instilling
healthy Iving In the young, we despanad health
promotion efforts tamgeted at children and youth.
Across all levels, the focus on eating right from
young has bean stepped up. As at March 2017,
672 childcare centres, 357 malnstreamn schools
and 13 Insthukes of Higher Learning serse
healthler meals.

i the second seascn of the Mational Steps
Challenge™, we continued to nudge sedentary adult
Singaporeans throwgh the use of Incentives and
gamification, to be more active. More than 350,000

adult Singaporsans took up the challenge, doubling the
ramber of sign-ups In seascn ohe We found that

62 per cent of participants who were previously
sedentary, Increased the time they spent an physical
activity after joining the challenge.

Acmss the Eland, free community exenciss programimes
have been extended to 72 nelghbourhood parks and

27 shopping malls, Increasing the access biltky for

all Singapaoreans to partake In execise By creating
wizlbillity of rmsss exencises In communal spsces, we also
rarmnallse the use of public spaces for group physical
activity, encouraging more such activibes.

Besldes staying acthve and eating well, we continue to
remind Singaporeans to safeguard thelr health, Cur
rational scresning programme, Screen for Lite, kesps
the Importance of regular keatth soresning and
foliow-up top-of-mind. With 70 per cant of the
population found In workplaces, we hawve also brought
screening and heatth coaching right to the doorsteps
of workers. This has led to encouraging shifts In
behawiours. OF thase with abnomnal screening results
whio returned for post-scresning a year later, one In four
hiave returnad to @ normal’ health status In &l aspects of
thelr screening results.

Moving ahead in health promotion

wie will bulld on the momenbum achlewed to take health
promction to the next level. In the development of our
programmes, we will Increass the application of Insights
and dats analytics to effect behavioural change.

Beyond the organisation, we wiill deepen and broaden
our collaborations with public and private sector
partners. In doing 50, we can turn more everyday
environments Into health promoting ecosystems,
weawing heatthy Ihving Inko the [ves of

rrare Slrgaporeans

| am excled at the cpportunities that lle ahead for
health promation, as we shape a nation of healthy people.

<z

Zee Yoong Kang
Chiet Exeoutive Offlicer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Merm ended on 31 March 2017
Jassumad tha roke of HEE Chalman on 1 &pril 2017
TMerm anded on 31 Decembar 2016
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WAR ON DIABETES

TAKING

STEPS TO
PREVENT

In April 2016, the Minister

for Health. Mr Gan Kim Yong.

declared War on Diabetes to
help Singaporeans live lives
free from diabetes, and for
those with the condition,

to manage it well. If left
undetected, untreated or
poorly managed, diabetes can
lead to serious complications
such as heart disease, stroke,
kidney failure, and blindness.
The Health Promotion Board
(HPB) supports this fight
against diabetes through
health programmes and
preventive health measures
that encourage healthy
living to avoid the onset and
progression of diabetes.

Let's Beat Diabetes

he Let's Beat Diabetes campalgn
aims to educate the public that
by taking the right steps. they
can live free from the disease and
for those with the condition. they can
manage it better. Launched on
24 September 2016 by Minister for
Health. Mr Gan Kim Yong, and Minister
for Education (Schoois), Mr Ng Chee

The launch event attracted more

than 3,000 members of the public, 12
community groups and stakeholders
from public healthcare institutions, all
coming together to show their support
in combating one of the most serlous
and prevalent health issues faced today:
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Piedging tobeat diabetes {ieft to ights Minbter for Education (Schoos,
Hr W Chee Hang, Minkber for Heaith, Mr San Kim Yeng, Madam Haimah

Yacoh, and Sankor Hinister of Staie for Heaith, Dr Army Khar

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Tha BEAT masoats in the Let's Egat I'."I::im campagn

Urpssding of the Lat's Baat Dlabebes iopo by Gussts of Horour,
Minebar for Haaith, MrGan Kim Yong, and Minsbar for Education
[ Schooisy, Hr g Ches Horg

“Let’s Beat Diabetes” has become a
rallying call for Singaporeans to fight
and stay ahead of the disease together,
with the “B.E.A.T" representing key
pillars in diabetes prevention and
management - Be aware by knowling
your risk and screening for disbetes.
Eat right and in moderation by
choosing more wholegrains, fruits
and vegetables. and reducing intaks
of sugar and seturated fat. Adopt

an active lifestyle and engage in at
least 150 minutes of physical activity
weekly: and Take contral by alming for
a healthy welght and having regular
health check-ups.

To create awareness and strengthen
top-of-mind recall. HFE took to
various platforms to communicate
key messages. Prominent print and
outdoor advertisements, including on
billboards, bus shelters and

taxis, increased the

and reach of the Let's Beal

Disbetes campaign. A dedicated
letsbeatdiabetes sg websie was also
launched to provide a one-stop portal
of disbetes-related information.

out of 10
participants
strongly recalled
the advertisements
for the campaign

AMMNLUAL REPORT 2NE/2017



WAR ON DIABETES

War on Diabetes Public
Engagement Exercise

FB embarked on a public
engagement exercise to seek
views from Singaporeans on
potential initiatives that could be put
in place to encourage healthy living in
Singapore and prevent the onset
of diabetes.

Conducted between September and
December 2018, the engagements
focused on identifying barriers, gaps
and issues hindering Singaporeans
from adopting a healthy lifestyle.

Through a serles of focus group
discussions, face to face dialogues and
listening points set up at community
venues and workplaces. Singaporeans
revealed that they understood the
urgency in fighting diabetes and were
gware about the need to adopt
healthy behaviours.

Csputy Prima Minister, Mr Teo Chea Hean, putting aooss his
views af org of tha diabates listening ponks
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Sarior Hinister of Stata for Hasith, Or Amy Khor, with
partidparks on & bour of sEais offering heakhier Tood opdlons,
at an engagement sasskon wikh the Chinass comman iy

Participants also shared their views
on how to ef fect a lifestyle change
including making healthier food and
drink options more easily available,
running more exercise programmes
in the community and workplaces

to enable busy Singaporeans to stay
active, and bringing health screening
programmes to more workplaces and
community venues.

The public engagement exercise
formed a key platform to gather views
from a wide spectrum of Singaporeans
of diverse ages and backgrounds.
including working adults, mature
workers, youth. women and the
different ethnic communities. on how
to collectively win the war on diabetes
as a nation.

- Diabetes Prevention

Efforts in the
Community

ith everyone having a
w part to play in combating

diabetes. HFE developed
& support package for community
partners including Group
Representation Constituencies.
Voluntary Welfare Organisations,
temples and mosgues, to engage
residents In thelr communities
in the fight against the diseass,
The support package consists of
easy-to-understand, bite-sized
information on the key pillars of
diabetes prevention and management
as well as healthier recipes and
diabetes tip sheets tallored for
different communities.

To complement this outreach ef fort.
over 50 roadshows and events were
also conducted in the community to
raise the awareness of the disease and
highlight the importance of adopting a
healthy lifestyle.

As of March 2017, one
of the diabetes prevention

= ) programmes piloted in
"7 Toa Payoh West-Balestier

%&wﬁ' had reached more than

- B

residents over
six months

A close partnership with the Beglonal
Health Systemns Is also important in
whole-of -government efforts to tackle
diabetes. In August 2018, HPB worked
with the National Healthcare Group
to roll out a piiot diabetes prevention
programme In Toa Payoh
West-Balestier. The programme alms
to help residents who are pre-diabetic
to better manage their health and
condition through regular follow-ups
and lifestyle changes.

Health coaches from the National
Healthcare Group assist residents with
welght management, body mass index
tracking, blood pressure monitoring.
and setting simple health goals for

diet changes and exercise. Lifestyle
intervention workshops are also
conducted at the Residents' Committees.

To encourage residents to adopt a
healthy lifestyle, fitness trackers have
been provided to residents to enable
them to monitor thelr physical actvity
levels. Residents also have access to
HFB's exarcise programmes. such as
FIT+ and Community Physical Activity
Programme, to enable them to Increase
their physical activity level.

N

Guest of Honour, Madam Haimah Yaoob, 2 an angagamark
sassion with tha Malay community
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BUILDING
THE RIGHT
FOUNDATION
FOR
HEALTHY
LIVING

Good health is the best
foundation for the overall
development of our children
and youth. To shape and
nurture healthy behaviours
in our young, the NurtureSG
Taskforce, led by the Ministry
of Health and Ministry of
Education, was set up to foster
healthy habits from young
by equipping our children
and youth with the skills

and knowledge to embrace
healthy living and enhance
their health outcomes.
Recommendations from the
Taskforce. which the Health
Promotion Board (HPE) is a
key member of, focus on

key areas of physical
activity and nutrition.
mental wellbeing. and sleep
to strengthen and deepen
health promotion efforts

for children from
pre-schools to Institutes

of Higher Learning.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

NurtureSG

n 2016, the NurtureSG Taskforce
was astablished to develop new
strategies and strengthen
existing programmes to
address sallert health issues
and trends among children
and youth, and bring health
promotion beyond schoals,
into homes and
the community:

Between April and June

2018, the NurtureSG

Taskforce, which comprised

representatives from various

Ministries. HFB. the Early Childhood

Development Agency, and Sport

Singapore. conducted a public

consultation with more than 800
which revealed that

insufficlent physical activity and poor

nutrition were among some of the

key concerns of parents. careglvers,

teachers. students and other

key stakeholders.

The NurtureSG Taskforce had issued a
sulte of recommendations which focus
on three key areas - physical activity
and nutrition. mental wellbeing.

and sleep. These recommendations
enhance HFB's efforts in reaching out

to promote healthy living and provide

e e B i Ser i
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Pre-pdesod chiidran having a heaiby unch wl'll:h |:-:v|15||.|:5c|'
wholegrains, wegotabios and fruk

& supportlve environment for our

young to adopt healthy living practices
and sustain healthy habits.

HFB will increase opportunities for
children and youth to participate in
physical activity and provide greater
access to healthler food cholees in
schools, strengthen mental resilience
from a young age. and promote good
sleep hygiens practices for parents,
children and youth.

Sankor Minbter of Skabs Tor Heakh, Cr Larm FinMin, and

Sanior Minkter of Skabs for Education, Or Jani Puthuchsary,
Favireg 3 Faaithy lunch begathor wikh pre-school chidren

As part of its efforts. HPB will also
engage key stakeholders such as

parents. caregivers and teachers to

children and youth. As parents and
caregivers play a critical rale In
Inculcating healthy habits from
young by being good rale
models in healthy living, it is
important to partner them to
raise awareness of how they
can improve their children's
health, and strengthen their
capabilities to motivate their

young charges.

Sandor Hinister of State for Haaith, Or Lam Pin Hin I'I'I:Ii-:tlrr:
with pre-scheol childran durirg a visk

Insights from the NurtureSG

public consultation showed that
a healthy child:

does not suffer
from stress,

is able to
concentrate in

school, manages
emotions well

well—hehwaﬂ.
confident

AMMNLUAL REPORT 2NE/2017
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN SCHOOLS

PROMOTING
HEALTHY
LIVING
FROM
YOUNG

Many healthy habits and
practices are inculcated
during the formative years
of childhood. To encourage
the young to make healthier
choices and instill healthy
living behaviour, the Health
Promotion Board (HPB)
actively engages schools and
stakeholders such as parents
and teachers through
educational programmes and
health-promoting initiatives
to enhance health outcomes
among Singaporean children
and youths.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

School-based Health
Screening Programme

he School Health Service

plays a vital role in delivering

quality healthcare services to
Singapore's school-golng population
through the School-based Health
Screening Programme,

Every year, the
School Health
Service's team

of doctors and
nurses conduct
age-appropriate
health screening

for primary and
secondary school
students comprising
vislon tests, hearing
tests, scollosia
screening, growth
and developmental
assessments. and
medical examinations
to detect common
health conditions and
monitor the health
status of students,

In 2018, the School Health Service
covered 382 primary, secondary,
rellgious and special education achools.
where more than 322,000 students
participated in the health sereening.

I|'\- e e S A S S

e e T A

& studenthaving har vidlon chedked 35 part of tha Schooknzssd
Haakh Scresning Programme

Health-Promoting
Pre-School Framework

health-promoting pre-school

has a strong and supportive

culture and ervironment to
inculcate healthy habits and behaviours
that lead to better health and education
outcomes among pre-schoolers.

The Health-Promoting Pre-School
Framework encourages pre-schools
to establish a structured approach
to guide, monitor, sustain and assess
health-promoting efforts in
pre-schools for students, parents
and staff.

Participating pre-schools are assessed
on the provision of a supportive
emvironment, targeted intervention
for students and capacity bullding

of teachers, parents and staff.
Pre-gchools that meet the criteria

are awarded the Health-Promoting
Pre-gchool certificate and logo.

As of
March 2017.

Il Sl By

pre-schools have 3
been certified as a AN
health-promoting

pre-school

Health-Promoting
School Framework

framework similar to that
established for pre-schools.
the Health-Fromoting School
Framework encompasses primary and
secondary schools. junilor colleges and
centralised institutes. The framework
provides a structured approach

to support schools in bullding a
supportive health-promoting culture
and environment.

The framework consists of processes
and programmes for the general
student population. targeted
intervention for identified groups of
students and capacity bullding for
teachers and parents.

Schools are also provided with a
Health Promotlon Guide comprising
the Health-Promoting School
Framework and the latest details on
HFE's programmes. With the guide
and framework, schools are better
@ble to plan for and implement health

programmes for their students.

Uptake across
HFFBE's programmes in
schools has increased

from 2015-2016
by = " compared to 24%
from 2014-2015
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN SCHOOLS

Health-Promoting
Madrasah Programme

he Health-Promoting

Madrasah Programme sees

HPB collaborating closely
with madrasahs to bulld a conducive
environment that enables madrasah

students to adopt healthy living
habits. Through the programme.
educational talks. workshops and
resources are incorporated into the
madrasah’'s curriculum.

The initiatives introduced In
madrasahs include health-promoting
skits, physical exercise and
capacity-bullding workshops to engage
studenis, teachers, parents and

staff on healthy living topics such

as healthy eating. physical activity
and mental wellbeing. Since s
introduction in 2018, the programme
has benefitted more than 3.000
students from six madrasahs. A
total of 238 students have also been
trained as health advocates to provide

support for thelr peers.

S e S S
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Madraszh studamts engaged inpasr adwscay training during the Studank
Heakh Ambassador workshop

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD
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hildren spend most of their

formative years In schools,

making it a conducive
environment to engage them to shape
healthy behaviours from young.
School Health Executives enable HPB
to widen its reach through deeper
engagement with schools in creating a
healthy environment for children.

School Health Executives play a

key rale in recommending and
coordinating suitable health
promotion programmes for schools,

parents. Through the School Health
Executives, HFE is better able to
evaluate the effectiveness of various
health programmes and be more
attuned to the schools' needs

and strengths.

e

School-based

hikihood Immunisation
safeguards school-golng
children from
communicable diseases. To ensure
that they recelve the recommended
immunisations, HPE conducts
the school-based Immunisation
programme in accordance with the
National Childhood Immunisation

Frogramme.

The School Health Service teams
provide immunisation to
school-going children to ensure a
high immunisation coverage in each
achool and prevent the outbreak of
infectious diseases in the community.

In 2016, the School Health Service
introduced the Child Consent
Portal - an online platform to
facilitate parents” submission of
medical information, consent on
Immunisation and oral health
screaning for thelr children.

2 211
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Primary Five students
immunised against
poliomyelitis

el Wile)

Primary Five students
immunised against
diphtheria, pertussis
and tetanus
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Parents Workshops

FPB has designed a serles of
parents workshops to raise
* awareness on the

importance of good health for their
child. and educate them on the available
avenues to get help when needed. These
workshops equip parents with the
knowledge and skills to nurture their
child's health.

Colours of the Mind is a workshop on
mental health which helps parents to
build on their child's strengths for better
self confidence. The I See, I Do workshop
helps parents to learn to be positive

role models and how they can help

their children cultivate healthy habits

in dally living. Eat Right. Get Moving.
which features a food preparation
demonstration. highlights the importance
of healthy eating and an active lifestyle
for the growth of young children.

Parants ara baught fo idantify tha Heathisr Cholos Symisas and
her t0 shop for heathir food options

-~ of parents are committed
1 *3r/ to nurturing a healthier

e’ § /O

attending the workshops
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN SCHOOLS

Student Health Student Health

Ambassador Programme Advisor Programme
eer influence plays an nder the Student Health
integral role in the formative Advisor Programme,
years of a child. As such. professional nurses are

it is important to have in place
a supportive network of youth

stationed In participating schools to
make it convenient for students to

advocates ﬂngf can nt?]ig to encourage seek health-related advice. 2 ) .1 )
the adoption heal habits and
behaviours among their peers. Student Health Advisors serve as students completed
a focal point for health promotion, a six-month weight
\ I Since 2014. HFB lifestyle counselling. and early management
o has partnered the identification and interventlon programmme
St John Brigade to of high-risk behaviours such

= groom their pool as smoking, and health-related
of cadets to become issues such as obesity and chronic
health advocates conditions among youths.
under the Student
Health Ambassador Through individual or group health
Programme. By counselling sessions conducted at
equipping these primary and schools, the Student Health Advisors
secondary school students with provide advice and guidance to
knowledge and skills on health students on health-related issues
matters, the youths are able to and where necessary, of fer them
complement HPB's school-based timely Interventions and follow-up,
programmes and positively influence The support that they provide in et el O
their peers to adopt healthy habits schools helps to enhance the health
and promote healthy living. and wellbeing of students as well as achieved weight loss
bolsters the efforis of the or maintained
School Health Service. their welght

As of March 2017, the Student
Health Advisor Programme has
been introduced to 40 secondary
schools, three ITE Colleges. and five

polytechnics. By end 2017. HPB plans
to reach out to 50 secondary schools.

BLY LT
E‘ﬁ&ﬁﬂm“m sharireg her idazs on how o champlon reduced Elnﬂlklng and
secondary
were trained through the quit
Student Health Ambassador Programme successfully
after three months
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
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CULTIVATING
HEALTHY
EATING

HABITS IN
CHILDREN

Food preferences
and eating habits
are mostly
shaped during

the early years
of childhood.
& The Health
Promotion
Board's (HPB) healthy
eating initiatives in schools
establish a supportive
environment for children
and youths to make healthier
choices and adopt good
dietary practices that they

can carry into adulthood.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Healthy Meals in
Childcare Centres Programme

ealthy behaviours formed from

young have a positive impact on a

child's health and quality of life as
they progress into adulthood. HFE's Healthy
Meals in Childcare Centres Programme
introduces pre-schoolers to healthy food
options and shapes their food preferences
from an early age.

Under the programme, participating
childcare centres comply with food service
guidelines that aim to reduce fat, sugar
and salt in meals. These centres also serve
healthy set meals which incorporate foods
from the four main food groups, such

as brown rice, wholemeal bread, meat.
vegetables and fruits to help children
obtain the necessary nutrients for

their growing needs.

Childcare centres are further equipped with
culinary training and assessments, and
workshops are conducted to help cooks and
centre supervisors with menu planning and
healthier cooking methods. They also learn
to prepare meals with healthier ingredients
such as brown rice and about appropriate
food portioning for children.

been conducted for

Healthy Meals in
Schools Programme

he Healthy Meals in Schools

Programme is intended to

foster healthy eating among
students and help them receive the right
proportion of nutrients necessary for

their growing needs.

Canteen vendors from participating
schools follow food service guidelines
that reduce fat, sugar and salt, and
promote serving wholegrains, fruits

and vegetables in meals.

Additionally, HFB provides culinary
training for canteen vendors to equip

them with knowledge about healthy
nutrition, and skills to prepare tasty

and healthy meals using healthier &
ingredients. HFB also guides the school - :
canteen committees in monttoring =7 ydmet
the food sold in schools. By the end of A% WHOLEGRA WS

2018, 357 malnstream schools have
implemented the Healthy Meals in

Schools Programme.

OF & STRONGER 10N

Heathior options served In canbsars on boand tha Heaithy Hesis in Schaois Programma

ll_:-\_n_n_-_w._-.\,_q”_q_._\_,_\__\_,_\_,_\_,_\_,_\___,_\_,_ —
o e

TN A S S

Prirmiary school studants anjoying thair heakhy rmass

e e e e e e e b= e =i s s g s, s,_yoi
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Healthier Dining Programme

FB introduced the Healthier Dining
Frogramme in tertlary institutions
to provide students and staff with

healthier food and beverage options. and to
encourage them to make healthier choloes.

Under the
programme,
educational messages
) - on healthy eatin
Healthier are installed in ¢
options participating food and
available herg beverage outlets, HPB
also of fers nutritional
consultancy services
on campus to help
tertiary institutions
provide lower-calorie meals. Food and
beverage outlets are encouraged to offer
lower-sugar drinks. include healthier
ingredients such as wholegrains in meals.
use healthier cooking oll, provide a good
variety of fruits and vegetables, and reduce
the sale of deep-fried foods. HFB has scaled
up efforts to Increase the programme’s
reach and depth by including food and
beverage outlets such as restaurants.
cafes and kiosks on campus. under the

programme.

- \

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD
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i
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A shudant Trom Eha Mational Universky of Singapons buying 3 heaithisr maal with 3 52 decount vouchar prosvided by HPE
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Drink Water Campaign

n ongoing efforts to instil good PR

water-drinking habits in primary
school students, the Drink Water
Campaign has been put in place to
encourage students to drink
water through fun and
— interactive activities.

The campalgn Includes
an Interactive 20-minute
skit to educate students

i T T N I T TG A T

%
;
|
g
&

the students is a water
cooler that will “talk” about
the benefits of drinking
more water o students who

approach it

As part of the campaign.
participating schools are encouraged
to appoint one water ambassador for
each class to lead the class in drinking
water during two water breaks.
Participating schools are also provided
with ambient installations such as
plllar stickers, water cooler stickers
and posters as visual reminders
for students to drink more water.
Students are each given a water bottle
and bottle tag to encourage them to
drink more water.

To involve parents in instilling the
waler-drinking habit. electronic direct
mallers are sent to remind them on
how they can encourage their child to
drink more water daily.

By the end of

March 2017,

the campalgn

reached B8O TR
primary schools. waker daity

T E Dl

J
D L E RN E R R R

mu i shng] g

Bt bt b i Pl g
By 1 b ket daeg eirn
Wbt Bt mii oges L 8 pmciien

weres,
Drink wp-

dispiay ed N schoods to emird siudanes 1o drink mors
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GETTING

ACTIVETO

GROW UP
HEALTHY

| Fun Xplore

un Xplore is a pre-achool healthy

lifestyle programme which alms to

Inculcate positive lifestyle habits in
overwelght and severely overwelght
pre-schoolers and their parents. to help
these children achieve a healthler weight.

Fun Xplore comprises a community-based
cooking demonstration and food tasting

Active Kids Programme

argeted at overwelght and severely

overweight students between the ages

of T and 12 years old, the Active Klds
Programme alms to equip students with the
knowledge and skills to manage their welght
through healthy lifestyle habits. The three-month
programme engages students and their parents
through Interactive workshops and personalised
phone coaching sessions.

Ptk

The Health session for parents to pick up nutrition
Promotion tips on how to modify eating habits. and Under the Active Kids Programme. students learn
a Fundamental Movement Skills workshop about healthy eating through interactive games and
Board (HPB) conducted by Sport Singapaore to food preparation. and how to adopt a physicaily active S~ -
believes encourage pre-schoolers to be p}mw uj‘eigt_ﬂe through fun aerobic wm such
active through enjoyment of play. is as KpopX Fitness. Hip Hop and Kids Zumba.
in the complemented by a three-month phone Parent-and-child bonding sesstons are also held children participated
L importance coaching sesslon for parents to monitor for them to learn how to prepare a healthy meal in the Active Kids
of inculcating and sustain their efforts to help their together. Severely overwelght students and their Programme in 2016
an active children achieve healthier welght. parents are of fered additional sesslons where they
can exercise in community spaces. such as parks
lifestyle and SAFRA clubs, to Improve their fitness level
from young.
in order for In the phone coaching sessions, lifestyle coaches
provide support to parents in barrier solving
children and youths to Under the Fun Xplore and goal setting to help their child better change
enjoy a healthier quality Programme lifestyle habits and achieve a healthier weilght in
of living and reduce the T Jory T,
risks of chronic diseases .1 JL
later in life. -snt;nnl&rs ;gﬂ m
mthriﬂas and phone
S | A s i
in 2018 .
. of students reduced
N ! their body mass index
7 & About to a healthier level by
- of pre-schoolers the end of the programme
| body mass index
14 to a healthier level by the end
of the programme
% | A Sudant karning o prepens & heakhy meal thmough e Actve Kids Prosgramime
!
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B

m@nﬂﬂrw&rﬂm i
 severely overwelght students '
e A Ty |
years, el i : o encourage primary and ; s Hibe &2 Toskitie b win trios 1 the
mgﬁtﬁm;mmm secondary school students to i Wgwm
habits such as regular physical activity, :© eat healthier and improve their :
healthy eating and maintaining a : fitness level, HPB plloted the Lifestyle ' Similar to the National Steps Challenge, the
positive mindset. : Coaching Programme in primary ! Rep with Steps Challenge alms to encourage
; i students to sit less and move more by
programme - amaools betwean March and Muy ; incorporating physical activity into their
Iﬁwm i 2016, and In secondary schools from ' daily routine. Tt is designed to motivate
sessions of sports i November 2016 to February 2017 mtnmnenmnm
and games, aeroblc ; to increase their level
workouts such as : “» The Lifestyle Coaching of daily physical activity
aaaaa Hﬂhﬂkﬂxm [———2_) © Programme is a mobile anywhere.
_,L management tips, and : - & Participating students
T self-monitoring toals to | || | DROAEIMETS PrUgUTe are provided with a
track their progress. ﬂn&t&dﬂmm ;?mummmuﬁ
7. 737 students participated In the : =1 primary and secondary synchronise the data using
programme in 2018, and about 81 per == srhoal students. The HFE's Healthy 368
m&&i%mﬂﬂrm o DPOgrANLNG comgrises two mobile application.
mass indeX toa thier level by the
| parts: a child-friendly mobile application Prizas ape awarded 1o the
end.of e thros-mankth: programme. | totrack food intake and exercise. 5 ipbachbmphadior gl
: and 1o log helght and weight. which top teams of each school with the highest

average daily step count. The top 500
students across all schools with the highest
average daily step count also recelved prizes.
In Season Two, the Rep with Steps Challenge
saw participation by 10.875 students from

]
z
:
%
E

T Y]

'-'l' -Uall

-"'\- =3

"unsﬁpnmmd
secondary

students who
completed the 12-week

programme
a reduction in their
body mass index

i R o B ) o S e i ]

Erroouraging secoredary schoal studenks bo b physically active theough sports
and games 23 part of bee AaFAESH Programms

1 H Shudanits skning up Tor Ssason Twa of e Aep with Stops Tralongs
1 T = arazdshow hakd In Tampines Secordany School. Tha top W0 steppers i the Rep wkh Steps Challkenge atthe Anzia avant

Fiedd at BOUMCE Singapors
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Steps for Good Challenge
Season Two

rganised for tertiary students. the

Steps for Good Challenge 1s an

intra-institute physical activity
competition held at Institutes of Higher
Learning. The challenge aims to encourage
students to integrate more physical activity
into their daily routines and nudge them to sit

s legs and move more.

e

= Students are provided with a

complimentary
is paired with HFE's Healthy 386
maobile application to clock their

To rally students to clock more steps
together with friends In a fun way,
activities such as Ping-pong Frenzy. Dance
Dance Revolution and Step Ladder are
brought to the campus.

The second season of the Steps for Good
Challenge which ran for five months
reached over 34.000 students from the
Institute of Technical Education (ITE)
Colleges, National University of Singapore
and polytechnics, which included Ngee
Ann Paolytechnic, Manyang Polytechnic,
Republic Polytechnie. Eingapm-a Palytechniec.

Gatting in rreors physical scivity Beyend stopst

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

steps tracker which

S S M T T T R

A total of
. ¥ 4 S v B B

students from

the Institutes of
Higher Learning
participated in
Season Two of the
challenge

.
|
ST ey (PTG S (R A

Get Active! Roadshow

he Get Activel Roadshow 1= a platform

for tertiary students to learn more

about healthy living and to sign up for
personalised health coaching. First plioted at
ITE College West and Nanyang Polytechnic,
the roadshow provides health sereening for
students to measure their body mass Index
and blood pressure, and analyse their breath
using the smoker]yzer.

Students who are

interested in improving
their wellbeing can then
speak to a lifestyle coach

The roadshow also featured a stepper machine
where students were able to challenge their
friends to a test of fitness levels.

Participants competing 1o win aitractive prizes s the Gat &ctvel stepper chalianigs
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sumumlﬂu | Chucky Bird and Oral Health Promotion in oral Health
motional wellbeing is a key PB conducts the Oral Health programine
MD HEMTHY factor in ensuring that the Promotion in Pre-schools conducted at
Yyounger generation grows up programme at childcare A2 2
F“T"RE mentally healthy and resilient for centres and kindergartens across Che de ).
thetr future. Chucky Bird and Friends Singapore, and at the School Dental
is a programme targeted at lower Centre. The programme is almed at
) Healthy living is primary school students to equip them ralsing awareness among parents and
" g lifelnngjourney with skills to properly manage their children on the importance of using
that stapts Fp emotions from a young age. optimally fluoridated toothpaste and to
S 1rom inculeste effective dally
childhood. To Developed In tooth-brushing habits from young.
inculcate healthy consultation
behaviours from gﬂTﬂéﬂlﬂp& ﬂ;ﬂd e @ 0 0 centres &?-}a provided
a young age. the Health 30-minute skit Q ¢ Vith training on oral
Promotion Board (HPB) works provides a fun e’ n A health. where toplcs
closely with key stakeholders ALet v S\ U N, ir ﬂmmtgﬂf;rﬂmm"ﬂ‘m“m
and schools to bring healthy students to learn causes and preventian
living programmes to the appropriate of tooth decay. and
students and conduct health m to w the m-%remmn %fﬂ at
Y BT tooth-brushing.
Ecgeslnin‘grf::; il‘iaatti:;ngju;‘e such as learning how to calm down. therapists also train e L)t [
a healthy slart or make thoughtful declsions and seek the teachers on the age-appropriate : t
younger generation. help from trusted adults. amount of toothpaste to be used by eachers trained
the children. Following the session, in oral health

teachers are encouraged to Implement
daily supervised tooth-brushing at
their childcare centres.

In addition to these
efforts, dental therapists
conduct interactive

q story-telling sesslons

@ OR )
{"-" b b= [
as well as games

&

j : in kindergartens on
3= Sird and proper tooth-brushing
V). { S Friends Programme oo 100 )*
< “ [ T reached out to over
ﬂ f\ IR P N ATATASE In 2018, the School Dental Centre kindergarten children
iy _;!! "\,v N e LILIN performed various oral health benefitted from oral
B . and dental procedures for care
C"N /' | students 6,691 pre-schoolers. prosemines

)
= 11
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and Dental Screening in
T o improve the oral health of

primary and secondary school
students. HPB conducts oral

a video show, a classroom talk and
individualised tooth-brushing
exercise. Each student is given a
tooth-brushing kit and an oral health
checklist for thelr parents to follow-up
at home.

A& dental therapkt conducting a tooth-brushing exsrclss for & Primary Cna
student & part of the Bright Srmiks, Bright Fubors Programms

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

e p——

Another programme is the Flague
Disclosing Programme for Primary
Three students, where thay learn how
to identify and remove dental plaque ina
hands-on exercise. Primary Five students
attend classroom talks that educate
them on the causes, consequences and
prevention of gum disease.

awareness of the importance of good oral
hygiene. The contest saw a total of 1458
student participants from 147 achools.

For Lakti hﬁ“'l_'l ]
Education Colleges (ITE)

- n October and November 2018,

three mobile dental clinics were

deployed to ITE College Central, ITE
College East. and ITE College West. By
making dental services available on-site,
HFB aims to educate and reinforee good
aral hyglene habits in ITE students and

encourage them to take responsibility of
their oral health.

Oral health sereening is conductad
during the deployment period of the
mobile dental clinics and students

who require follow-up treatment are
ascheduled for appointments. Treatments

-

T Ny e e Y s N Ty

he National Myopia Prevertion
Programme is aimed at delaying the

. onset of myopia and reducing its

progression among school-golng children

Spectacies Fund Voucher Scheme has helped
more than 38,000 needy students since 2006

Under the scheme, HFB continued to
work with Essilor Singapore in a roving
optical shop initiative to make vision care
accessible to needy students who have yet
to utilise their vouchers after the annual
vision screening in schools.

In March 2017. the Eye Care Week Carnival
was held at HPFE's HealthZone with the theme
“Keep Myopla Away, Go Outdoors and Play™.
The carnival comprised four game stations
and a 30-minute interactive workshop on
increasing outdoor time. As research has
shown that increased outdoor activity is
ef fective against myopia, HFB has also
stepped up efforts to of fer more outdoor
activities in schools.

& pre-schoolar karning to kderntity good e cre habiks throagh an
rkaractive mxhibit &t tha EveCare 'Waak Carnbval

A ] Y A A

school students had
their vision sereened
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
AT WORKPLACES

BRINGING
CUSTOMISED
WORKPLACE
HEALTH
PROGRAMMES
TO MATURE
WORKERS

Singapore's ageing population
makes it imperative to look

into the needs of the greying
workforce. To ensure that
mature workers can continue
in productive employment for
as long as they are able and
willing to work., the Health
Promotion Board (HPB) has
stepped up efforts to expand
and deliver workplace health
programmes to mature
workers in various sectors.
Customnised programimes
tailored for the workers’
health needs. work nature
and lifestyles are made
available, so that they

can benefit from health
interventions and continue

in productive employmernt.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Health CHAMPS

n 2018, HFE expanded its ef forts

to make healthcare accessible to

mature workers by rolling out
workplace health programmes to benefit
workers In the education sector,

Under the Health CHAMPS programme,
holistic workplace health programmes
such as physical activity, volce care,
mental wellbeing. nutrition, and
women's health were introduced to
teachers at schools under the Ministry
of Education.

This initiative also provided targeted
interventions such as exercise sessions
ard health talks 1o pre-school teachers
at thelr workplaces. In addition. HFB
collaborated with NTUC First Campus
to bring health screening and follow-up
intarvertions to its pre-school teachers.

The Health CHAMPS
programme reached
close to

- ¢ AWM OY

school teachers and
more than

R LYY
pre-school teachers

Health Starts with Us FIT+

FB collaborated with the
Singapore General Hospital

to conduct Health Starts with
Us FIT+, a 12-week programme aimed
at engaging ancillary workers in the
healthcare sector.

Launched in September 20186, the
programme reached out to more than
200 ancillary healthcare Workers.
The workers were given time off to

participate in the programme during
work hours. which was targeted

to increase strength, balance and
flexibility among mature workers.
The programme is belng scaled up

to reach more ancillary workers.

More than

-1 J1 |

ancillary healtheare
workers participated
in the Health

Starts with Us FIT+

W A /Y

of participants
attended at least eight
intensive sessions

Healthier Workers,
Happier Workers

ince the inception of the
Healthier Workers. Happier
Workers programme in 2018,
it has scaled up to benefit more than
8.000 bus captlains from Tower Transit,
SBS Transit and SMRT.

Following a workplace health risk
assessment, an ergonomics intervention
programme was implemented to equip
bus captains with practical skills such
as driving ergonomics and how to
manage occupational issues, Health
coaching sessions were also conducted
for bus captains to learn how to manage
chronlc diseases through healthy
lifestyle practices.

With the support of the National
Transport Workers Union, healthier
food options were made avallable at
bus depots and Interchanges 1o make

healthy eating accessible 1o
bus captains.
More than
= L MY 1) W
i '_b|1|r_|'r||".““l ]

|__-':- |
bus captains have t‘ 4 I ]
benefitted from the %L z -
Healthier Workers, =

Happier Workers

programme
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KEEPING THE
WORKFORCE
ACTIVE AND
HEALTHY

An active and healthy
workforce contributes to
better productivity and
enhanced performance at
work. The Health Promotion
Board (HPB) continues its
efforts to make healthy
living options more easily
available and accessible at
the workplace, in order to
encourage working adults to
incorporate more physical
activity in their daily routines
and adopt healthier lifestyle
habits, such as opting for
healthier food options.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Sunrise in the City
"he Sunrise in the Ciy initiative

i . sees HPB collaborating with

Ml | key gym partners to provide
regular workout opportunities to the
working community. The sessions are
conducted at accessible locations to
make i convenient for working adults.

Originally designed to provide working
adults an oppartunity to kick-start
their work day with an energising
workout, the programme has been
expanded 1o include lunch time and
weakend sessions.

Participants can try up to 34 different
types of workouts. including aerablc

dance fitness, mind-body programmes,
and conditioning workouts.
and multi-dimensional stretches. The
workouts are suitable for all fitness
levels. and help to motivate working
adults to participate with ease and stay

active to fight a sedentary lifestyle.

Under this initiative, participants can
also make use of the facilities provided
by the various gyms and studios
during their workout sessions.

i“-. partners supporting
Sunrise in the City at

IP’_:‘I"l dif ferent

touchpoints
2 lele}
availlable each week

Sunrise in the City has over

1.5.0)C)C).

i-Run

'@ -Run is another physical activity

initiative by HFBE which promotes
physical activity. lifestyle

change and soclal cohesion through

group exerclise.

Through i-Run. HFB hopes to
encourage working adults to form
interest groups and run at their
own time and comvenience, and start
& sustainable lelsure time physical
activity. i-Run is open to individuals
of all fitness levels, allowing both
beginners and avid runners as well
as corporate groups 1o use this weekly
workout platform to improve their
fitness levels. This will contribute
to better productivity and

i-Run is
conducted

4 times
per week

An Run session sk Labrador Park

I-Run enables participants to bulld up
their fitness levels through weekly
runs along scenic routes and lconic
locations. led by professional trainers
and pacers. The trainers also of fer
tips on how to improve cardiovascular
fitness, and conduct running clinics
to educate participants on running
techniques and how to prevent

i-Run is a permanent feature at
Car-Free Sunday SG

Fitness@Work

“hrough initiatives such as
Fitness@Work, HPFB has been

| #ls establishing a soclal norm
of using public spaces for physical

activity This heips to encourage
people to incorporate regular physical
activity into their everyday routines.

Organised at various iconie locations,
Fitness@Work makes physical activity

maore pervasive, enjoyable and
accessible to everyone. Participants can

enjoy moderate to vigorous weekly
seroble exercises that bulld up thelr

endurance and fitness levels, leading to
better health benefita

Led by professional fitness and dance
trainers, Fitness@Work sessions

are specially choreographed to suit
participants of different fitness levels.
The sessions comprise mixed aeroblcs
and dance workouts such as Zumba.
KpopX Fitness, and Kickboxing.

Fitness@Work sessions
scaled up to include
 new lconic locations
W% - Bayfront event space,
~ The Lawn at Marina Bay.
and Plaza Singapura

Fitness@Work is now a
permanent feature at Car-Free
Sunday SG

Over ur,- "-T-'
participants participated in

the first-ever fitness countdown
New Year party in front of the

iconic National Gallery Singapore
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EXTENDING
WORKPLACE
HEALTH

PROMOTION
EFFORTS
TO SMEs

Small and Medium Enterprises
(SMEs) may face various
constraints in implementing
workplace health promotion
programmes for their
workers, including a lack of
demand, limited experience
in planning such efforts, and
a tight budget. To support
SMEs on their workplace
health promotion journey,
the Health Promotion Board
(HPB) has developed a new
scheme to provide SMEs
with greater flexibility and
af fordability in rolling out
health programmes.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

SME Workplace
Health Package

FPB has introduced the Small
and Medium Enterprises (SME)

Workplace Health Package to
target workers in the SME sector.

Plloted in September 2018, the SME

Workplace Health Package aggregates
dermnand for health programmes
among SMEs, making workplace health
programmes hassle-free and

more af fordable.

Under this initiative, SMES are given access
to a selection of slmple plug-and-play health
programmes which are co-funded by HFB.
This simplifies for SMEs the process of
coming on-board HFE's health programmes
and gives them the flexibllity to plck and
choose programmes that best sult their
workers' needs and schedules,

As of March 2017, the SME

Workplace Health Package
has attracted

# 2 3 24 SMEs with
close to

s S S R e S

e s e e e e sy

Onshs haalh smeaning for SHE ampiopsos
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T S I A T

BOOSTING , i
MENTAL e

from more than

WELLBEING

."l-;l-'l

T e

AT THE | ~ " employees.
] E industries which include
|
| 5 hospitality, building and
Beyond bringing healthy :; { construction. education and
living to workplaces through - | | food & beverage
physical activity programmes L T
and making healthier food %ﬁ%ﬁ&gﬂgﬁﬁjﬁ”mm
choices available, the Health
Promotion Board (HPB) also
reaches out to working adults Workplace Mental
to improve their mental Wellbeing Programmes
wellbeing. This enables the argeted at employees and
working population to better managers at workplaces, HPB's
manage stress and build their e g mmw“w“ b e
resilience when faced with good mental health so that they can
workplace challenges. perform productively and cope weil - g g )
with challenges. R e o e e e R e e e S o
D i I S I et mny e
: Messages on ef fective stress
b management are weaved into
b experiential workshops that of fer
L ‘:51 activities such as clay modelling and
i terrarium bullding for participants.
e ', n ’ The programmes also equip
} ARL 7  E managers with knowledge and
i e J n.;, ’ skills to support their staff. To
heas o I.r,i-l encourage help-seeking behaviour,
sl 7 1 capacity-bullding workshops are
a ﬁ conducted for human resources
= % personnel and managers who are
vy typically the first line of support for
k. their staff. The one-day management
f,..-f training workshop covers information
l and tips on recognising common
mental health issues, including how
to engage staff who display signs of

emotional distress.

Paricmanks presenting their finkhed work 3t tha end of the tomarium buliding workshop
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STRENGTHENING

HEALTHY
WORKPLACE
ECOSYSTEMS

The development of Healthy
Workplace Ecosystems is a key
approach in the Health Promotion
Board's (HPB) commitment

to bring healthy living to the
doorstep of workers. This
approach creates a supportive
environment with
health-promoting facilities

and services for workers, and
enables the demand for health
programmes to be pooled
together conveniently and in a
cost-efficient manner. Through
innovative partnerships with
landlords and developers,
workplace health programmes
within the Healthy Workplace
Ecosystems are customised to
suit the needs of workers from
various workplace clusters.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Healthy Workplace
Ecosystem in Business
Clusters

"o make healthy living available

and accessible at the workplace,

the Healthy Workplace
Ecosystem approach was piloted at
Mapletree Business City in 2013. The
approach has since been expanded to
over 30 business clusters, including
Millenia Tower. Tampines Concourse,
South Beach, Capital Tower, QUE
Bayfront, Paya Lebar Precinel, and
Sumec Precinct.

The Healthy Workplace Ecosystem

approach brings exsrcise programmes,

health education sessions, healthier
food optlons, and health screening to
companies located in close proximity
through aggregating demand to
impact a greater number of workers.

To ensure that customised health
Initiatives are relevant and
meaningful for participants in the
clusters, HPB first conducted ground
sensing to gain a better understanding
of workers' needs and interests.

Based on findings that workers are
generally desk-bound yet tech-savvy,
evening group exercise sessions
have bean Introduced to sult the
workers' preference to exercise after
work. App-based solutions such as
the Corporate Challenge under the
National Steps Challenge™, which
leveraged the Healthy 3658 mobile
application, were also employed to
nudge workers 1o sit less and

move More

Another health initiative, the Snap.
Eat. Win. Challenge at the Singapore
General Hospital campus. adopts

a digital approach to drive the
demand for healthier food options
and encourage healthy eating habits
among workers.

Since its introduction. the Healthy

Workplace Ecosystem approach has
garnered positive traction among
workers. One in three workers have

reported participating in one or more
health-promoting activities within

their cluster, while more than one
In four workers have been choosing
healthier meal options.

As of March 2017,
BAFs"E ATATAY
benefitted from

customised workplace
health promotion
programmes in over

WY £ | business
; clusters

Healthy Workplace

Ecosystem in
Industrial Estates

he Healthy Workplace

Ecosystemn approach

has been rolled out to
industrial estates which house
small and medium enterprises
(SMESs). SMEs typlcally have smaller
workioree sizes and lmited or no

access to health programmes.

As the majority of workers in SMEs
are generally more mature than their
younger counterparts in the business
chiusters, the health Initistives that
have been introduced focus on the
detection and management of chronie
diseazes, such as diabetes, high blood
pressure and high blood cholesteral.
to empower these mature workers to
better care for their own health and
make healthler cholces.

Among the health initiatives that have
been made avallable are basic health
screening, monthly health coaching
sessions, and smoking cessation
programmes. Results to-date have
been encouraging. such as improved
biometric health indicators and
increased medical follow-ups among
at-risk mature workers.

With support from developers and
tenant associations. HFE also scaled

up ef forts to expand the reach of the
Healthy Workplace Ecosystem approach
to more industrial clusters and bring
workplace health programmes 10 more
than 20,000 workers in the Ang Mo
Kio, Bedok, Tampines and Kallang Basin
industrial estates.

|
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

FOSTERING
A NATION
THAT
EMBRACES
HEALTHY
LIVING

The Healthy Lifestyle Festival
SG, organised by the Health
Promotion Board (HPB). is
an important milestone in
the drive to make healthy
living accessible, natural
and effortless for all
Singaporeans. Through
interactive exhibits, lively
demonstrations, and fun
activities, the annual
flagship event aims to show
Singaporeans that pursuing
a healthy lifestyle is both
rewarding and attainable
for everyone.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Healthy Lifestyle
Festival SG 2016

he Healthy Lifestyle Festival
5G. held from 30 September

_ 1o 13 November 2016,
brought roving roadshows to
heartlands island-wide. Singaporeans
were shown how pursuing a
healthy lifestyle is both rewarding
and attainable for everyone across
everyday environments - within
homes. workplaces, schools
and neighbourhoods.

The month-long weekend roadshows
culminated in an anchor event on

12 1o 13 November 2016 at the
Singapore Sports Hub and Kallang
Wave Mall More than 30 partners
took part in the festival to feature
healthier tood and drinks, Introduce

a variety of physical activities, offer
health sereening. and provide smoking
cessation and oral health advice.

In support of the government's ef fort
in the War on Diabetes, the anchor
event featured a dedicated “Let’s

Beat Diabetes” zone to educate and
rally Singaporeans to fight against
and stay ahead of diabetes. Visitors
were reminded that preventing and

managing disbetes begins with small
lifestyle changes.

Home Zone

In the Home Zone, participants picked
up tips on how to ¢cook nutritious and
tasty dishes from healthy cooking
demonstrations and workshops.
Participants also learnt to create their
own DIY gym. using everyday items
found in their home, to get a full body
workout. There were also skits, games
and contests to raise awareness of
dementia and how to fight the spread
of infectious diseases in the

home environment.

School Zone

Participanis who visited the School
Zone's canteen learnt how to use
HFE's "My Healthy Plate” as a guide to
having healthy and balanced meals.
Participanis also learnt asbout oral
health care and eye care, and free
dental screenings were provided for
pre-schoolers at the anchor event. A
mini-basketball court set up attracted
both adults and children, where

everyons was encouraged to be
mare physically active.

Workplace Zone

The Workplace Zone showcased health
tips that working adults can weave
into their workday. One example

was an office pantry with healthler
anack and drink suggestions that
workers can consider to satisfy

their mid-afternoon hunger pangs.
There were also interactive games
and exhibits with tips on managing
nicotine cravings and ways to support
smokers on thelr quit journey. To
praomote the importance of a healthy
mind. participants could also bring
home a8 motivational quote written by
calligraphers as a visual reminder to
think and feel positive.

Neighbourhood Zone

At the Nelghbourhood Zone,
participants enjoyed complimentary
body mass Index screening and learnt
about the types of health screening
recommended for their gender and
age group. At the hawker stalls set up
in the zone. they also picked up advice
and tips on how to switch to healthier
food options when dining out, while
sampling healthy and tasty food and
drinks. To encourage participants of
all ages to get active, there were mass
workout sessions for adults and fun

sparts try-outs for children.

scan to learn more about the Healthy
Lifestyle Festival S5G-
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

As of March 2017:

MAKING Healthier Dining
AT e
3 ve
: o Rsat e Tasls Ta 16 s by
EASIER AND Tectring with o s beveregs
EFFORTLESS Iowemiger deinks st el

ingredients such as wholegrains,
The Health Promotion Board's PATRATIECE Sope TR LrRcien
(HPB) Food Strategy is aimed Singaporeans when they eat out.
at changing and improving Participating partners
the quality of Macisfiod by on Hoatthsar Daning.
Singaporeans’ diet Programme identifier. as well as the
when they dine out FRVH] I ety o e Hvsl et fod
and eat at home.
Through the Food Participating restaurants of fer at least
=> )\, Strategy. healthier m‘“‘“ S W
R == food choices partners have 30% or at least five
have been made Ilf“ﬂl"’ﬂlﬁ[‘ beverages within their
more pervasive., Wige 0 rmas:
easily available Food stalls at participating hawker
and accessible. to encourage centres and coffee shops provide at
Singaporeans to practise M ARrel Cotlon. s Srinke siatis
healthy eating habits by promote lower-sugar drinks.
choosing these healthier and
tasty options.
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

According to the 2010
HNational Nutrition

Survey. 68 per cent of

Singaporeans have at
least one home-cooked

meal a day for lunch or dinner.

To encourage Singaporeans to use
healthier ingredients when preparing
meals at home, HFB partners the
food Industry to positively label food
products that are the healthier option.

Betwean April 2018 and March
2017, HPB also stepped up efforts
in engaging industry partners

to reformulate and improve the
nutritional quality of pre-packaged
food products. To nudge a change in

This was done through on-ground
consumer engagement such as

using incentives and point-of -sale
displays. HFE alms to increase the
pervasiveness of these Healthier
Choilce Symbaol products and grow the
market share to 28 per cent by 2020.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Educziirg shoppers on tha baneitis of hea ity satirg through prometional rosdshows

Eat, Drink, Shop Healthy
Promotion

FE rolled out an integrated
campalign to encourage
cholces when they decide on what 1o eat
and what groceries to buy

The Eat, Drink. Shop Healthy campaign
covered the three key initiatives under
the Food Strategy - 1o increase the
availability of heslthier meals when
eating out, through the Healthier Dining
Programme, less-sweetened drinks. and
Healthier Cholce Symbal packaged food
products.

Held from July to October 2018, the
campalgn used tactical promotions and
roadshows to engage coNSUMErs on
choosing and repeating purchases of
healthier options whean they eat. drink
and do thelr grocery shopping.

The campaign also featured a game
card contest and a lucky draw
promotion. Every purchase of
healthier food products, meals or
drinks at participating outlets entitled
the consumer to a game card which
rewarded them with elther instant-wins
or match-and-win prizes. Consumers
could also participate in a monthly
lucky draw through a simpile text
message mechanism.

A total of 6.6 milllon game cards were
distributed in the 2016 campalgn

and 312,207 lucky draw entries were
recorded, 13 times more than the same

campaign in the previous year.

AMMNLUAL REPORT 2NE/2017



SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

CHAMPIONING
PHYSICAL
ACTIVITYTO
GET A NATION
IN SHAPE

To help Singaporeans
4 combat a sedentary
lifestyle and maintain
a healthy weight
in a sustainable
(1)) manner., the Health
Promotion Board
(HFB) continues to
run various physical activity
and weight loss programmes
to encourage Singaporeans
to incorporate more
physical activity into their
daily routine and focus on
sustained lifestyle change.

64 HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Sundays@The Park

he Sundays@The Park
programme creates
. opportunities for Singaporeans
to participate in a variety of fun-filled
physical activity programmes with
family and friends in their
nelghbourhood park
every Sunday.

dointly supported by
Sport Singapore and
private fitness companies.
these group workout
-~ gessions provide the
community with a range
of exercises facilitated by qualified
trainers, at no cost to the participants.
Popular workouts inchude Zumba,

KpopX, Plloxing and Bolly Dazz.

In addition. HFE leverages its
partnership with the Natlonal Parks
Board to bring Sundays@The Park to
nelghbourhood parks. providing a
conduchve environment which 1s easily
accessible to the community.

Sundays@The Park also normalises
the concept of regular group activity
in avvallable public spaces within
residential vicinities, encouraging
everyone to participate in these
activities to stay active and healthy:

As of December 2018,

Sundays@The Park /)
had been scaled up to ._ ))

National Steps
Challenge™ Season Two

he National Steps Challenge™
was formed to encourage
Singaporeans with a
sedentary lifestyle to weave more
incidental physical activity into their
everyday lives.

In Season Two of the
National Steps Challengem,
HPB ramped up ef foris to
further extend the reach of
the Challenge and Increase
the level of participation
by introducing several
new features.

According to the National

Health Survey 2010,

30 per cent of adult

Singaporeans between the

ages of 18 to 89 do not have sufficient
physlcal activity To nudge working
adults to be more active, the Corporate
Challenge called for employees to
compete in a natiorwide inter-company
or intra-company steps challenge.
Held from 14 November 2016 to
28 February 2017, the Corporate
Challenge sought to bring out the
competitive spirit in organisations and
their employees to achieve the highest
number of daily average steps for
their respective companies.

To sustain interest and keep
participation from waning in
Season Two, HPB collaborated
with public agency partners
and commercial partners to
introduce monthly thematic
challenges designed to spur
participants to clock more
steps. These Included a
variety of recreational
physical activities for
participants of all ages
which can be done

individually or with family
and friends.

Leveraging technology to empower
participants to take charge of their
own health, the National Steps
Challenge™ integrates the use of

a wearable steps tracker and HFB's
Healthy 365 moblle application to allow
participants to track their progress.
In Season Two. participants could
also choose from a wider variety of
fitness wearables and dif ferent modes
of tracking steps. making it even
more accessible and convenlent for
Singaporeans to be physically acthve.

The sure-win reward tiers were
also expanded from three to six with
increasing difficulty levels to make

it more challenging for participants
and incentivize them to sustain the

behaviour of incorporating more
physical activity into their lifestyles.

More than

adult participants | «
and

working adults
participated in the
Corporate Challenge
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

Lose to Win ™
‘Reunion Challenge

imed at encouraging adults

with an unhealthy body mass

Index to achieve healthier
living and thedr welght management
goals, Lose to Win™ of fers an
elght-week structured weight loss
programme. The programme consists
of a series of activities, including

group exercise and knowledge

Posior promaoting the Losa bo Wi
Reanior Chalionge

During the Reunion Challenge,

participants took part In physical
activity workouts such as Kardio

KickBoxing as well as FIT Challenge
assessments. These activities provided

&5 HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Lo bo 'Win™ partidpants gathering Tor 3 mass workeut o gother

Car-Free Sunday SG

PB supports the monthly
Car-Free Sunday SG initiative
. with popular physical activity
initiathves such as iRun and Fitness@Work.

First plioted in February 2016,
Car-Free Sunday 5G alms to promote
active lifestyles and enhance liveability
in the city. while moving towards a
car-1ite Singapore.

Various events and mass exercise
activities have been organised at the
Esplanade Park and Empress Lawn.
including the HPB-SportSG Fitness
Party and HFB's Healthier Food Zone.
varying levels of exercise to suit
individual needs and conditions. Brisk
walks and workouts are also included
as part of the exercise sesslons.

Encouraging tha pubiic boskay ckhs
through 3 whiks-of-govarnrmant inftistvs,
Car-Fren Sunday 56

attended by about
.:_m-—;.:i;&!!mlﬂi
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I ith the direct impact of

H functional fitness levels in
older adults on their quality

of life, HPB runs the FIT+ programme

for seniors aged BO years and above,

to help improve and maintain their

functional fitness.

FIT+ s a 12-week community
intervention programme which
combines pre- and post-assessments
and a series of exercise sessions
focusing on building strength.
balance and flexibility in seniors with

average to low physical function.

Hour-long exercise sessions are held
once a week and these sesslons are

progressive in nature, with varying
levels of exercise to suit individual

needs and conditions. Brisk walks and
workouts are also Included as part of
the exercise sessions.

o LT % (] K Cge

|
i ¥ i Fin%
a “_J"_d‘ “‘ s t =
:I‘Uﬂﬁﬂf . EoaT s = ey

FIT"‘ mhtﬂd. Saniors participating In reguiar mass outdoor sesons

r'an::hjrdbgrm.lt to

a total

_SAL ) ﬂ
seniors |
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

activities together, are held at various
sites across Singapore, from parks to
sports centres and the Sports Hub. for
the convenience of families, and to

ActiveSG Sports Academy Tryouts.

The Active Family programme

is jointly organised with ActiveSG and
enabled by the support of National
FParks Board. Singapore Sports Hub and
Sentosa.

&8 HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

% =1 )

More than

1 1§ M M ?

parents and n
have participated in
the Active Family
programme since
February 2017

)

Active Men

argeted at adult men of all
fitness levels, the Active

e -Wﬁ-vwmﬁm—mvm—mr—i

Trea pubic trying O & Tt 3 inin @ Seeskan un der &Ctrea Man, 3 plot physical actiity programime: Ll kTsd for men
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

SUPPORTING
‘SENIORS

IN AGEING
HEALTHILY

For seniors to age well,
it is essential for them

to be healthy physically,
mentally. emotionally and

socially. In support of
Singapore's Action Plan

for Successful Ageing. the
Health Promotion Board
(HPB) has rolled out a series
of campaigns under the
National Seniors® Health
Programme to encourage
and empower seniors to take
charge of their health so
they can remain active and
healthy in their golden years.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Nutrition

for Seniors

PB introduced the Senlors

Nutrition Campaign In May

2016 to help senlors understand
the importance of good nutrition and
provide them with tips on how to
maintain a healthy and balanced diet.

With the nutritional needs of an adult

campaign aimed to address findings
of a study which showed that senlors
are not having an adequate intake of
calcium. not eating enough protein and
eating less than the recommended two

dally servings of vegetables.

in every meal. increase their caldum
more wholegraing, fruits and vegetables.

5

recipes and
healthy eating
tips was also
developed
to educate

gsenlors on

™ ™ ™ = ™

Sonkor Hirdstor of Staba for Haarth, Dr Army Ehior,
praparing sarding sarchwiches with sordors during

tha launch of tha Soriors Mutrtion Campalgn

preparing
healthy and tasty
meals at home.

A nutrition gulde and educational
poster were also included in the toolkit.
They provided information on essential
nutrients and tips on incorporating
food from dif ferent food groups to
meet the dietary requirements

of seniors.

a falls risk checklist. information

on the consequences of falling, tips
on how to reduce the risk of falls

by making simple changes to daily
activities, and a home safety checklist
to identify potential hazards,

1 A simplified version of the guide

The campai :

reached out to over : was also developed to better cater

: to senlors. With simple Instructions

Zae I\ N ' and visuals, senjors were taught

I Sl St j five simple tips on the importance

seniors and caregivers ' of exercising regularly to bulld and

through various : maintain lower body strength and
touch points ] balance. keeping bones strong by
: having a calcium-rich diet. going for
' re eye checks, wearing -

/ gular well
= atal 5 fitting non-slip shoes. and keeping
.-T,.-_,,:I1~ A : the home safe and clutter-free.
1=’ of seniors 5
- T after campaign ' Roadshows were also held across

/ s demmﬁ:rntadan ] heartland locations to reach out to

;_){ e of the : more sentors and their caregivers

= : community. Coples o

[t SWareness key in the ity Coples of the
messages : falls prevention guide were also

L L A A s A A ! distributed at community centres,

pharmacies. polyelinics and
restructured hospitals, and the gulde
and an educational video were also

Awareness

alls are a common cause of More than
injuries among 1200
; Mnmm i L

86 years and above. falls prevention

auch accidents often | were distributed

result in serious health

implications. HFB

rolled out the Falls

Prevention Awareness

Campaign in July 2018 |

1o educate seniors and

their caregivers on five

simple tips to reduce Over

As part of the '

campaign, HPB senlors, ¢ and

collaborated with members of the public saw

Alexandra Health the TV commercial. viewed

aystem to develop a Tha campakan highighad e it on o the educational video or

Sllspesvstion e 2 visited the website

It.. B ke
‘of seniors

post campaign
demonstrated awareness

of the key messages
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

Stroke Awareness

n conjunction with World
Stroke Day on 28 October 2016,
HFB launched its first Stroke

of stroke. highlight that stroke is a
medical emergency, and emphasise
that timely action is key to preventing
serious complications. The campalgn
was supported by the Singapore
National Stroke Assoclation. Stroke
Support Statlon. and the National
University Health System.

F.AST. which is used internationally,
is a simpile way for the public to
remember and ldentify the common
signs of stroke so that they can take
immediate action. F.AST. refers to —
Face: Is it drooping to one side? Arme
Can they lift both arms and keep them
there? speech: Does It sound strange

or unclear? Time: Call 886 immediately

if you spol any of these signs.

Under the campalgn. educational
resources including an information
booklet and educational video which
contained tips on how to reduce
the risks of stroke were developed.
The campaign also sought to raise
awareness through TV commercials
and print advertisaments.

On B November 2018, a public forum

jointly organised by HPB and campalgn

partners was held for participants
to learn about stroke prevention

measures and post-siroke care.
including avallable rehabilitation and
support services. Stroke survivors
and their caregivers were also in
attendance at the forum to share their

experience in managing the condition.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Yiou can spot a stroke
PRI AN

R

Tha campaign cragted awersnsss of how 10 kertity tha common signs of stoke

(@]

The campaign reached more than
725,000
seniors. caregivers and members
of the public who watched the

TV commercial. educational
video or visited the website

Exercise

o encourage seniors to stay

active, HPB launched its
“You Can Get Moving™. to reach out
to senlors aged 50 yvears and above,
Including those with reduced mobility.
The campalgn introduced seven
sit-down exercises to bulld strength.
improve balance and flexibility:

physiotherapists from NTUC Health
and Sport Singapore. the campaign
demonstrated to seniors the ease of
exercising in the comfort of their
own homes.

The exercises foocus on upper body
areas. including the arms. shoulders.
chest and back, which are Important
areas as it helps seniors to perform
day-to-day tasks such as carrying
groceries and doing household
chores. Senjors with reduced mobility,
especially wheelchair-bound seniors,
can also benefit from these exercizes
as they mostly rely on upper body
strength to move around.

An exercise video and Information
poster were developed to provide
senlors with easy-to-understand
instructions and plctures on
exercising safely and ef fectively.

HPE Hoaith Ambasmadors doemonsirating tha SE-doan ot Ees during tha isirch
of tha campaign
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Tha campaign niroduced saven sk-down exardses for senkes

The campaign reached over

= freee
L
1 i

niors, caregivers and members
of the public who saw the TV
commercial, viewed the educational
video or visited the website
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

NURTURING
GOOD MENTAL
HEALTH

FOR LIFE

Recognising the importance

of good mental wellbeing
for a healthy quality of
life, the Health Promotion
Board (HPB) continues its
outreach efforts to raise

awareness of dementia in the
community. educate seniors

about the importance of
mental wellbeing and how
it contributes to positive
ageing. and empower them

with knowledge and skills so

that they can take charge of
their own mental health.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

‘Dementia Public Education
PB's dementia public
education campalgn was
rolled out from September to

December 2016 to Increase the public’s

awareness of the symptoms of the

disease and encourage those af fected to
seek help early.

The radio and digital campalgn sought

to dispel myths that dementia is about

forgetfulness and that the condition
is a normal part of
ageing. The campaign

also highlighted the
symptoms of dementia
and communicated

the importance of
early intervention.
Under the campaign.,
educational resources
by HFB. Including an
Information

hotline and dementia bocklet were

made available.

In addition o the use of radio and
digital platforms. on-ground skits
about dementia and talks were also
organised in the community to

ef fectively connect with, and engage,
senlors aged 50 years and above as
well as thelr caregivers.

e e e e e e e e e e " e ]
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‘Nurture Your Mind

PEs Hurture Your Mind is

a community psychosocial

education programme that
seaks to improve the mental wellbelng
of senlors aged 50 and above.

To reduce the

risk of dementia

and depression

among senlors., the
programme focuses on
bullding their mental
wellbeing capacity

Under the programme, a series of
interactive learning sesslons were
carried out, covering toplcs such as
holistic healthy ageing. and varfous
dimensions of mental wellbeing
including self-esteem, cognitive
efficacy. reslilience, social intelligence,
emotional intelligence, dementia

and depression.

Fadikators haiping senions: bo Al 2 so¥ ededion workshest atan imteacdva

leaming Tession

A e ———

senlors participated
in the Nurture Your

Mind programme
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
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ENCOURAGING
SMOKERS TO
KICKSTART
THEIR QUIT

JOURNEY

Many smokers consider the
journey towards being
smoke-free a daunting one.

In recognition of this, the
Health Promotion Board

(HPB) has built a network of
support to encourage smokers
to take the next step to quit
the habit for good.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

I Quit

a  Quit. a national anti-smoking
initiative, adoplz a
community-based but

personalised approach to bulld a

netwark of support to help smokers

of all ages make their first or next

attemnpts to quit smoking.

Self-confidence appears to be an
important factor in ensuring that
smokers can bounce back from
relapses along the way and persevers
on their quit journey. Recognising the
nead to Instill confidence In smokers
so that they can successfully kick the
habit, T Quit 2016 was centred on the
theme of “Don't Quit Quitting™. The
campaign featured
former smokers
c'r;; sharing their quit
L experience and
] e,

)

Countdown programme in 2013. The
programmse helps amokers break
down quitting into daily actionable
steps, empowering them with the
knowledge, motivation, skills and
support to remain smoke-free
through the cruclal perfod of 28 days.

Participants can choose when they
would like to start their quit journey
when they sign up for the programme.
They will receive daily text messages
with tips and Inspiretion messages
throughout the 28-day countdown
period to motivate them as they go
through thelr quit journey. Those
who require additional support have
the option of weekly fallow-up calls
from Quitline, HPB's toll-free helpline.

At the end of 28 days. those who
are confirmed to be smoke-free will
recelve shopping vouchers for
thelr accomplishment.

More than
.

.slgn-':mawaQuﬂEmE.
exceeding the target by

s S A S St S S S S R
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An | Guk particiant wddng his srapstct o tha pledge wai

& participart teking out the smokeriyoer 2t the | Guk booth

smoking cessation
touchpoints in the community
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

EMPOWERING
ADVOCATES

OF HEALTHY

LIVING

Formed by the Health
Promotion Board (HPB) in

2011, the Health Ambassador

Network is made up of

ordinary Singaporeans
recruited from all walks of

life. The Health Ambassadors

serve as role models to
their family, friends and
colleagues, inspiring them
towards healthy living.
They lead by example

and help to bring positive
health messages and HPB's
health programmes to the
community on a more
personal level.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Diabetes Prevention Talk
by Health Ambassadors

n support of Singapore’s fight
I against disbetes, HPB enlisted a

group of Health Ambassadors
to conduct diabetes prevention talks
at various Senlor Activity Centres
and Residents' Committees. The
talks aimed to educate senlors and
raise their

awWareness : ,
on diabetes -
prevention Lgt .
and - > .
mansgement . Sugar./ &
sharing of o
simple health -

tips and advice

The Health Ambassadors related well
to the seniors as they were of similar
ages and could corverse in dialect. This
proved ef fective in helping the seniors
to understand the health toples better.

In 2018, the diabetes prevention talks
conducted by the Health Ambassadors
reached a total of 57T senlors across
18 sessions. At 12 of these sessions.
resistance band exercises were also
Inchuded to demonstrate simple
exarcises that can be done

by senlors.

A

Health Ambassador

Partmership with NTUC
FairPrice and Foodfare

rom June to August 2018, &
total of 77 Health Ambassadors
were deployed to NTUC
FalrPrice supermarkets and Foodfare
outlets to encourage Singaporeans
to make healthler
shopping and
dining cholces.

At NTUC FairPrice
supermarkets. the
Health Ambassadors
engaged shoppers
and distributed
information
pamphlets to
encourage them to choose products
with the Healthier Cholce Symbol.
The Health Ambassadors also visited
NTUC Foodfare outlets to give out the
information pamphlets and conduct
surveys to raise awareness on the
healthier options avallable at the

food stalls.

P
,’r"_\_‘——\_

000

‘shoppers were
reached across

NTUC FairPrice
supermarkets

diners were engaged
across a total of

NTUC Foodfare outlets
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

PROMOTING

'HEALTHY

LIVING IN THE

COMMUNITY

The Health Promotion Board

(HPB) has stepped up its
efforis to make healthy

living a pervasive feature in

the community by bringing
various health-promoting

initiatives and healthy living

options closer to residents.
These include offering
healthier dining options
and providing educational
health programmes, health
screening, and group
physical activities in
community spaces.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Activity Programme

FB rolled out the Community

Physical Activity Programme

in July 2018 In an effort to
establish a social norm of using public
spaces within residential vicinities
for physical activity. Under the
programme, which targets residents
aged 18 years and above. exercises such
as Zumba, pilates and yoga are led by
instructors every evening.

By creating visible groups of

people gathering at mass exercise
sessions, HPE aims to encourage the
incorporation of physical activity into
the daily routines of Singaporeans and
demonstrate the ease of keeping active
and healthy.

l'-i e,

sites since
its inception D

The programme has

sites to u

Under the
programme, over

‘sessions
and attended by an

he National Nutrition Survey

2010 showed that 60 per cent

of Singaporeans eat out for
lunch and/or dinner at least four times
a week. This includes the consumption
of food catered at events that
Singaporeans attend.

To encourage healthler eating habits
among Singaporeans, HPB has
developed healthler catering guidelines
to help consumers make healthier
cholces the easier cholee at functions,
meetings and events where catered
food is provided.

'mhakjeveryweak

; The guldelines alm to increase the
: consumption of wholegrains in
; place of refined starchy staples,
: reduce the consumption of sugary
; drinks and proportion of high
; calorie options, and reduce the
consumption of saturated fats.

HPB has worked with the
People's Association (PA) 1o

: encourage their grassroots

; organisations to adopt HFE's

: healthier catering guidelines for
: food catered at thelr commiinity
activities and events from 2017

To facilitate the adoption, a series

' of training sessions were planned
: for about 500 grassroots leaders to
P help them understand and promote
; the adoption of these guidelines

; in their constituencles at community
: events organised by PA. The

| first tralning seasion was held

In December 2016 for aboutl 120

: members of the Women
Executive Committee.
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To promots haathy esting Fabks in tha Aght agains disbatss, the Psoples’s Assoaciaion
Wil eroouragae grassmots ongani sk ions to sdopk HPE's heaithker cabering guidsiings for
i comemanky achvibas from 3017
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

Communmity Health Posts

asidents aged 40 vears and
above now have easy access
to health sereening in their
nelghbourhood with the establishment
of community health posts at

80 years and above are also screened
for functional decline of their vision,
hearing and oral health.

health topics such as falls prevertion.
nutrition and mental wellbeing. HFB
proactively brought the Senlors Health
Curriculum to venues where senlors
commonly congregate. in collaboration
with clan associations.

One such clan that HFE worked
with was the Kong Chow Clan

Association. Over the course of
three days. about 50 senlors at

In addition. health coaching services
are provided to residents with chrondc
diseases. Trained health coaches work
with residents to set health goals

and provide tips on how they can
make small changes to manage their
conditions and lead a healthier lifestyle.

As of March 2017,

community health posts

r.'.m | el __-_ un
have attended their first health

coaching session

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

activities and provide healthier options
to make healthy living easy and
accessible.

A Health Promoting Mall provides

a range of opportunities for
Singaporeans to incorporate healthy
living habits into their daily lifestyles.
These include regular workout sessions
at event spaces. healthier dining options
in food & beverage outlets. pharmacies
with free smoking cessation advice and
educational events that promote healthy
living.

A ey highlight of this programme is
the free mall workout sessions. which
are often held on weekday evenings or
during the weelkends. These workout
gegsions enable shoppers to engage In
physical activity together with their
friends and families in the comfort of
an alr-conditioned shopping mail.

As of 2018,

prevention.
tips and healthier recipes. These aid
women. in their role as influencers in
the household, to help their families
reduce the risk of disbetes and lead
healthy lifestyles. including eating right
and making healthier food cholces.

The calendars were distributed via
the People’s Assoclation Women's

To ensure that more women can benefit

Health Calendar was also made avallable

Tri 3T Heakth Calendars serve 25 3 visaal remndar for women o
maka Faathker choloas in thair daly IMss and Rfusnoa thelr families
oo Ehe sama

the Kong Chow Clan Assoclation i Since the health calender was
participated in an interactive |
oo first introduced in 2013, almost
on how to adopt a healthier 2 aTava’alé
lifestyle so that they can age well.
health calendars have been
ﬂgﬁpﬂtﬁmmmmucnmcnnm:m af b thrae-day Imermctive workshop on distributed to the ﬂﬁl‘]]_l‘.l‘j].lﬂ]‘l‘.}!‘
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

STEPPING UP 'F.LG.H.T. Campaign
DEFENSES b iy gt g

AGAINST et et A

INFECTIOUS HPB ntroduced the
_ ~ FLG.H.T. campalgn to
DISEASES Soccucess 04 akption
of good hyglene
practices and educate
Singaporeans on the
ﬂhsetriving ggnd ihyg}ene importance of being
practices anda going ior : socially responsible in .
regular immunisation can g % P 91 - Community-based _
help to fight Vaccination Programme
1 [ 7 the spread The FLGHE.T. campaign encourages for Seniors
7. of infectious wﬂﬁ:&u help ;::-eﬂ::m infectious W 0 continuin
. g efforts to raise
diseases. diseases - Frequent hand washing, awareness on soclal hyglene
The Health mmmunisation. aoing to the doctor iIf and increase the uptake of
Prﬂln‘.ntiﬂn unmwell, Bome rest if urwell, and using immunisation among seniors.
Tissues and masks to stop the spread HFEB partnered with the National
Board (HPB) of germs. Healtheare Group to bring its
clnati to LI
Ed%'l:ia tes the Launched in two phases in June and E’E mﬂi]nn;lr:;rc:grnmma
public on September 2018, the campaign Included
simple hygiene practices that advertising at MRT stations W HFB's Health
can h‘E Ed.ﬂptﬂd Hnd nffers awareness and roadshows at th \ | Ambassadors werea
Promoting Malls, where the public stationed at polyclinics
immunisation programmes was educated on FLGELT. messages -~ Y hrate hnki
in the community to build through interactive memory games on the Importance of
up the nation’s resistance and augmented reality Installations. immunisation. Using
against infectious diseases. ARACIGLITE SUNIOIR

|
j
3
|
§
tools, seniors were. e
at the same time. b’
educated on simple
hyglene practices .
such as proper hand .
washing techniques to {
prevent the spread of Infection. Free !
|
!
i

r—\_—u—_—_—_—\_—\_&—_—\_—d—_&—u—u—-\_-—u-ﬂ-u- R g e e g g i
i
r
¥ r i -
s

vaccinations were also provided to
seniors by the National Healthcare
Group in various community
settings close to the senlors® homes.

T e e e -\.--\.-'\j

& Haaith Ambaesodor engages wikh 2 senkor during a vaocination st

- L
L S S

| L A A e i P e A S e Sy e

Zharing the F1LGHT. mesrages with membars of tha pubic

1
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

SCREEN FOR

QUALITY OF LIFE

Regular health screening
can help detect diseases

in their early stages. This

in turn reduces the risk

of serious complications,
resulting in better health
outcomes. The Health
Promotion Board (HPB) has
introduced the national
screening programine,
Sereen for Life, to promote
regular screening and follow
up. To further drive the
importance of screening,
HPB also collaborates with
various partners during key
cancer awareness months

to extend its public
education efforts.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

- Screen for Life

esldes eating well and

being more active. it is also

important to go for regular
health screening and follow-up as
early detection and intervention can
lead to better health outcomes.

A I
To improve awareness and keep
screening top-of-mind. HFB's
national screening programme,
Sereen for Life. seeks (o educate
individuals on the right type of
screening and Immunisation they
require across thelr life stages based
on their age, gender and risk profile.

The programme encourages
individuals to get screaned for

colorectal, breast and
cervical cancers
as well as chronle
dizeases including
diabetes. high
blood pressure,
high cholesterol
and obesity. As
part of efforis o
increase screening
uptake, a campaign
was launched on various platforms,
including roadshows, TV
commercials. print advertisements.
digital and soclal media, as well as
outdoor advertising.

- Colorectal Cancer
Awareness Months

eld every year in March and
H September. the Colorectal
Cancer Awareness Month is
organised by the Singapore Cancer
Soclety. with support from HFB.
to raise awareness and encourage
individuals aged 80 years and above
to screen for colorectal cancer.
The awareness campalgn supports
HFE's goals of increasing uptake of
screening for colorectal cancer.

)

|

During the awareness months.
Faecal Immunochemical Test (FIT)
kits which help to sereen for small
amounts of blood in a person's
stools. were made available to the
public at no coat across Guardian
and Watsons pharmacies. as well
as at SingHealth and National
Healthcare Group Polyclinies.

e e o e e W W

- Women's Gynaecological
Cancer Awareness Month

he Women's Gynaecological

Cancer Awareness Month

campaign ailmed to create
greater awareness of the three
gynaecological cancers. namely
uterine. ovarian and cervical cancers,

among Singaporean women. The
campaign focused on encouraging

¥
HFB. 171 general
practitioners jolned
in the campaign from May to July
2018 to provide Pap smear screening
at no cost. The campalgn was also
supparted by KK Women's and
Children's Hospital, Natlonal Cancer
Centre Singapore, National University
Cancer Institute, Singapore, NMational
University Hospital, Singapore General
Hospital. Parkway Cancer Centre, and
Singapore 0&G Pte Ltd.

= - fe

L gt

2] w-ﬁ-."'- oy i g

" ¥ I
g smile o celiet
3 | :Q_Luu'T-14, Feuvi
dofjé Feur
Pap Smear Test:

Campalgn poaber bo ralse awarensess of the
Importarcs of sresaning for cenvical cancer
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
IN THE COMMUNITY

- Breast Cancer
Awareness Month
PR he Breast Cancer Awareness
Month is held every October
to remind women to invest
in their health. Tt
encourages them to
take the inttiative to
learn about the signs
and symptoms of
breast cancer and more
importantly. to go for
regular mammogram

scereening and follow up
., with their doctor.
L HFEB. a key member
i 3 of the Breast Cancer

Awareness Month

committee.
which alzo includes NMational Cancer
Centre Singapore, Singapore
Breast Cancer Foundation, National
University Cancer Institute, Singapore,
National University Hospital and
Singapore Cancer Society. supported
the initiative through a series of
evenls under the theme of
“Treasure the Breast Things in Life”
to ralse awareness of the disease.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

W ——

- BEAM15
' ince 2013, HPB has been
collaborating with the
Breast Cancer Foundation
on the Breast Cancer Foundation
Encouragement for Active
Mammograms 18 (BEEAMIE), an
initiative aimed at encouraging
more eligible women from the lower
income group to take the step to get
screened. The initlative supports HPB's
objectives of increasing breast cancer
screening uptake among wWomen. as
early detection and treatment can lead
to better health outcomes.

Under EEAMIS, aeligible Singaporean
women. aged between 80 and 69
years old. benefitted from fully
paid-for mammography screening
at 17 screening centres across the
island. These were women who

had valld Health Assist cards and
never had sereening mammograms
(breast x-rays) or whose most recent
mammogram was more than two

(T e®

BEEAMIS
offered at

ﬂr'-. P

e screening

centres across

' Health Coaching

g PE designed the Health

H Coaching programme to

reach out to residents with
chronie conditions. The objective is
to help these residents manage their
conditions through setting health
goals and making changes to

their lifestyle.

Residents ldentified
their health goals

and put them into
action with help from

a Health Coaching
team comprising
counsellors, nutritionists, physical
activity experts and trained Health

Ambassadors known as Health Kakis.

The Health Kakis contacted the
residents regularly to set achlevable
goals to improve their dally health
habits relating to diet, physical
activity and mental wellbelng.

After the health goals were set, the
Health Coaching team periodically
discussed and reviewed the progress
with the residents.

As of March 2017, the

Health Coaching programme
reached more than

C

ll].:ﬁ[_'r;?rl ||[‘ﬂ'.3

' Take Charge Programme

i 3

FB's Take Charge Programme,

helps residents to understand chronic
conditions and how to manage them

through a healthy lifestyle.

Under the programme. a team of
trained allled health professionals

and nurse educators equips resldents
with the knowledge and skills to better
manage existing chronic conditions
such as obesity. high blood pressure
and blood cholesterol. and diabetes. The
programme weaves in storytelling and
the life experiences of people living
with chronic diseases. to bring to life
how lifestyle behaviours can impact
the management of chronic conditions,
and how everyone can take charge of
and improve their own health.

community sites

g
IS
LY

{ |
-
S

of residents learnt
something new from
the ﬂ'ﬂl"kﬁm and

intended to apply them

in their daily living
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
THROUGH TECHNOLOGY

In line with the Government’s
aim to build a Smart Nation
by harnessing information
technology to improve
Singaporeans’ lifestyles, f
the Health Promotion Board "
(HPB) has been leveraging i
technology to nurture a

nation of healthy people by !.
creating tech-savvy platforms ~
which include HealthHub
and the Healthy 365
mobile application.

These technology platforms
help to further shape

and influence
Singaporeans’
behaviour towards
healthy living.
and nudge them
to take greater

— —

their own
health and
wellness.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

nveiled in 2018. HealthHub,
Singapore's first online
portal and mobile application
g personalised health

and services, has
become a key digital companion for
healthy living.

In its latest suite of enhancements,
access to health records on HealthHub
has been extended beyond parent and
child to include caregivers, enabling
them to help their care-recelvers
better manage their health.

The new Caregiver Access Module
allows caregivers to access health
records. check test results and view
appointments. serving as a health
assistant to caregivers by allowing
them to conveniently take charge of
administrative tasks such as health
record keeping and monitoring. as well
as appointment tracking. This helps
to reduce the time caregivers need to
spend on these tasks. 50 that they can
pay more attention to their
care-receivers.

As of March 2017,
HealthHub has seen
more than

views
the portal

¥ L}

he Healthy 368 mobile application
was developed as a key
technology platform to support
‘s Mational Steps Challenge™ _ a
nationwide pedometer-based physical
activity initiative aimed at encouraging
Singaporeans to be more active.

In the latest enhancements to Healthy
368, HPB Introduced the "Sync-For-
Friends’ function which allowed
National Stepa Challenge™ Season
Two participants, who do not have a
smartphone, to sync their step count
using their family members' or
friends’ smartphones.

To reach out to working adults, a new
Corporate Challenge feature was built
into the Healthy 365 mobile application
in the second season of the National
Steps Challenge™ , The new Corporate
Challenge called for employees to
compete in a natlonwide, Inter-company
challenge. It also included an optional
intra-company challenge which allowed
departments or teams within the same
organisation to compete with one another.

Features on Healthy 388 will be
continually enhanced to improve user
experience and functionality, as part
of nudging Singaporeans to leverage
technology to lead a healthier lifestyle.

Over

mobile application as of March 2017
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
FROM WITHIN

—

L

The Health Promotion Board's
(HPB) instils a culture of
innovation that encourages
its employees to push
boundaries to better enable
Singaporeans to live healthy.
This is done through
continuous learning and
experimentation of new
ideas to realise HPBE's goal

of shaping a nation of

healthy people.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

1o advocate a learning culture,
‘and facilitate the transfer of

| knowledge and best practices,
various organisation-wide platforms
were crealed for HFB employees to
share thelr knowledge and learn
from one another.

In 2016, HFB introduced The Learning
Pit Stop. which are brown bag
sessions aimed at facilitating learning
and sharing of experiences from
real-life projects. These sessions
enable employees 1o galn deeper
insights into the challenges and
success factors behlnd various

HFB programmes.

The HPB Link-ED Talks, which
cover a wide range of loples, Including
behavioural insights. analytics. and
design thinking. Is another platform
where employees can benefit from
team learnings. Guest speakers such
as local academic experts have also
been invited at this platform to share
their latest research and findings to
keep employees updated on the latest
trends and developments In healthcare,
allowing them to gain exposure to
new ideas.

e e e e e —\.—H—.-ll
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before belng rolled out at the
national level.
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Pad Housa captain, Ong Wi Keong, recaiing the winning trophy

for the Mational Steps Chalenge-HPE Heusa Chalkersgs, from CED of

HPE, Hr Zoa Yoong Kang

In addition to enjoving the benefils
of new healthy living initiatives.
employees are encouraged to provide
feedback and give insights on what
can be done to further fine-tune

the implementation of these

national programmes.

This approach facilitates faster
learning as it enables teams to
improve their design and delivery

of programmes. It also deepens

the organisation's engagement with
employees. where employees feel they
have a meaningful part to play in
developing national-level initiatives.

One prime example was the
collaboration between the

National Steps Challenge™ working
committes and the organisation’s
Healthy Workforee Committee to
conduct the National Steps Challenge™
-HFB House Challenge, a staff trial
which contributed to the successful
implementation of thematic
challenges in the National Steps
Challenge™ Season Two.

AMMNLUAL REPORT 2NE/2017

a7



SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
FROM WITHIN
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was Introduced In 2010
to strengthen the culture
innovation by recognising and
awarding project teams who have
developed outstanding Innovations In
their areas of work, to better nudge
Singaporeans towards healthy living.

B

he FS21 ExCEL Award recognises
 projects and policies which best

o demonstrate the ExCEL values
of continuous enterprise and learning.
and rewards the most outstanding

To promote innovation in all aspects
of HFE's work, there are two award
categories - the Enabling Processas

T T

e o g U SO S s LI S

e e e e el

category and the Health e e e e e individuals or teams for their e ————— e e

Promotion category. Thea team thak won tha Soid Awerd In tha Erabilng Mromesss Cabegory on stags most Innovative efforts. HPE's Workplace Hesith and Cutraach beam recaked tha Soid 2w ard from
with CED of HPE, Mr Tea Yoong Kang Pormanant 5ecretany (Eductiong, Hr Meo Klan Hong

The HFB Child Consent Portal RS e T P e e ML o e HFE's Workplace Health and Qutreach

programme team received the Gold Division took the Gold PS21 ExCEL

award in the Enabling Processes Award for the Most Innovative Project

category for the development of an
online form for parents to provide
consent for immunisation and dental
servicesz. This winning effort saw
collaboration between the Youth
Preventive Services Division and
Chief Information Officer's Office to
axplore new procesges and platforms
to better meet the needs of busy

working parents.

The Healthier Cholice Symbol
programme team clinched the Gold
award in the Health Promotion
ﬂ-ﬂtﬂ! o EFIE' J’i“ﬁ]‘ I;, t‘lﬁ:h; ﬂef. I:]:jlﬁ]@ni?ﬂﬂilﬂﬂﬂ]‘ Eg;;ﬁgmmgmn.ﬂmmnmmm“mtmmu #ard in tha
Choice Symbol products. This
initiative involved collaborating
with industry partners to
Healthier Cholce Symbol offerings
and Influencing consumers at
strategic touch points to opt for
healthier cholces.

for their efforts in establishing a
new standard to deliver customised
healthcare initiatives to sectors with
high concertrations of

mature workers.

d
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SHAFPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
FROM WITHIN

In alignment with the
Total Workplace Safety
and Health Act. the

Holistic Health
Committee was formed to
lead strategies in making
healthy living an integral
part of the Health Promotion
Board's (HPB) culture. This
multidisciplinary team,
together with HPB's
Healthy Workforce Committee,
seeks to create a safe work
environment, and implement
fun and meaningful
interventions to improve
the health and wellbeing
of HPB staff.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

" rganised by the Healthy
. Workforce Committee,

i ! programmes for the wellbeing

of staff such as recreational and
sports activities have attracted

strong participation.

Highlights included recreational
activities that promote social
bonding and mental wellbeing,
such as visits to urban farms and
The Green Corridor, as well as
movie screenings and karacke
sessions. Employess also actively
participated in lunchtime
wellness classes and other
interest group activities
championed by HFB's own sports
and craft enthusiasts.

IﬁCIT

The HFB Hair for Hope fundraising
event saw 14 staff making a ‘bald’
statement to raise a total of S§35.324
for the Children's Cancer Foundation.
In recognition of the support for

the foundation, HFE was conferred
the Bronze award in the Corporate
category of the Children’s Cancer
Foundation Philanthropy Awanrd.

HFE staff rais< furds for tha Children's Cancer Foundation through
participatineg In the Halr Tor Hops Tundraising evwant

5 T b ¥ o T

‘TOINSPIRE

The Health Promotion
Board's (HPB) fosters a
culture where HPB staff
share a passion for
health promotion

and preventive
healthcare.

This develops
employees who

are willing to

push their limits

in their learning.

and go beyond

the call of

duty to inspire
healthy living

among fellow
Singaporeans.

2 the heart of HPB is its
people. Their aspirations and
|- cortinuous development will
“determine HPB's success In the long

run. In this respect. leaders play a
cruclal role in nurturing, empowering
and steering employees towards
achieving their best and delivering
HFE's goals.

To nurture a strong community of
leaders and help them hone effective
leadership practices, HPE continued to
focus on developing its leaders.

A new middle management group.
the Junior Executive Group. was
introduced to support a leadership
pipeline with a new generation

of leaders.

The synergy between the new
dJunior Executive Group. the
Leadership Group and Executive
Group provides HFB with the
necessary leadership capabilities,

at every level. to achieve successful
outcomes and scale new heights in
health promotion.

Another key initiative under HFE's
leadership development roadmap is

the Leadership Coaching Programme.
It i= aimed at cultivating a coaching
culture by equipping leaders with
coaching skills and providing
opportunities to reflect and share
leadership journeys and challenges at
monthly leadership learning platforms.

With a focus on fostering a strong
culture of learning. the Leadership
Group has also led the way by
practising reflective conversations in
the everyday leadership of their teams
and the wider organisation.
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
FROM WITHIN

The Health Promotion
Board's (HPB) success is
only possible with staff
who believe passionately in
what they do and who are
motivated to go the extra mile
in influencing healthy living.
These HFB role models are
accorded due recognition with
various internal and external
awards, and also profiled as
inspiring public officers at
the national level.

L] HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

>

Eastern Health Alllence Caring Awards
conferred by Changl General Hospital.

he Excellent Service
Award is a national
award that is conferred
individuals who have

delivered outstanding quality
service. The award 15 aimed
al identifying service role
models for staff to emulate and

ereating service champions in
the major service Industries.

Under the Excellent Service Award
2016, 74 HPB staff received 47
Silver awards, 21 Gold awards, and
six Star awards.

Supported by SPRING Singapore.

the Excellent Service Award 1s
managed by Industry leaders such

as the Assoclation of Singapore
Attractions. Land Transport Authority.
Public Service Division. Restaurant
Assoclation of Singapore,
Singapore Retallers Association, and
Association of Banks in Singapore.

he Healthcare Humanity Award
is presented to outstanding
healthcare workers who go the
extra mile to provide care and comfort
to their patients or care reciplents. The
also alms to

T Cmsrig Fane
ALTHE ARG 1" ~48TT AWARDE 2

and respect o [

Dearttal Thiarapist, Mt Los Erg Chioon,
remaiving the Heakhcare Homanity Award from
Sanior Hinistar of Stabe for Heakh, Or Ammy Khor

“Beyond his job
responsibllities as a dental
therapist, Wai Leong often
volunteers his services to
provide dental career talks in
schodis 1o help promote the

dental profession among the
students. His enthusjasm and
passion to serve has inspired
the students, teachers and
principals whom he has
worked with -

— M3 Genevieve Chye, Pri '
Honttort Jwﬂuri-;mdm

he HPE Quality Service

standards of service excellence. These
award winners serve as service role
models who inspire other colleagues to
perform their best in their work.

In 2016, HPB presented the Quality
Service Award to 87 employees

who achleved 71 Silver awards,

19 Gold awards and seven Star awards.
Commendation awards were also

presented to seven teams.

Highar Dental Therapet, Hr Theong Wil Laong, recslvng
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SHAPING HEALTHY BEHAVIOURS
FROM WITHIN

he Singapore National Day
Awards recognise outstanding
public officers for their

& performance. conaistent
diligence and tireless dedication to
their work.

Dr K Vijaya, Director of the
Youth Preventive Services Divislon.

high standards of the School Health
Service and implementing the lconle
Singaporean fitness routine, the
Great Singapore Warkout, in 1993

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD
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Or K Wijaya, Dirscior Youth Prevantive Sondoes, iopethor with
H= Cedia &ng, Highar Executiva Il, School Heakh & Cadrsach

Higher Executive IT of the School
Health and Outreach Division. Ms
Cecilla Ang, was also recognised for
being a key advocate for health in
schools, especially in the pre-schoal
sactor. Her exemplary qualities include
a relentless commitment to her job,
diligence in bullding competencies to
achieve efficiency. and bullding strong
tearmwork with her peers.

For leading a team to manage the

greater efficiency for her team as well
as other teams within the National
Registry of Diseases Office.

FE's Chief Executive Of ficer,

Mr Zee Yoong Kang. was
conferred the Medal of
Award by the Mational
Trades Union Congress for helping to
advance labour management relations
through HPB initiatives. These efforts
Inciude enhancing skills of lower Income
employees, and providing bursary awards
to the children of the Amalgamated Union
of Statutory Board Employees (AUSBEE)
and union members from the lower
income group through the
AUSBE-HPE U Care Bursary.

CED of HPE, Mr Zea Yoong Kang, recaiving tha award
from Matiorai Trades Linkn Congrass Secretany-Ganaral
Hr Chan Chan Sing

moment in my job would

be witnessing my patlents
grow from young and feapful
children to cheerful and
pleasant teenagers coming

to see me al the clinle. Tt

is about finding joy and
purpose in going the extra
mile to Improve the lives of

fellow Singapareans through
what you do

— Dr Lim Wanyl, Associste Consupant,
You'th Preventive Sergices

t HFB. there I8 no lack of
inspiring storles of staff who
have gone above and beyond
of duty to make a difference
to the health of Singaporeans as well
as to their colleagues. Such exemplary
stories of passionate HFE staff are
often shared on various soclal media

Dr Lim Wanyl. Assoclate
Consultant from the
Youth Preventive Services
Divislon, is a keen advocate
for preventive dental health. She
was featured in the Public Service
Division's PS I Love You series and
spoke about her personal experience
in driving oral health promotion
programmes in schools in an effort
to create awareness on proper dental
hygiene and educate children on good

practices.

Dr Lim also shared her thoughts about
children from families of lower
socio-economic status who might
neglect their dental health due to a
lack of affordable care options, and
her ablliity, in her role, 1o make a
difference. As a HPB dental of ficer,

Dr Lim has been able to reach oul to
these children to render quality oral
and dental health care.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance

The Health Promotion Board (HFE) was established on 1 April 2001 to perform the functions,
objects and duties set out in the Health Promotion Board Act (Chapter 122B) (the Act). HPB was
mmmmﬂmmmmmﬂwthEmmtaraﬂ

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the Board) comprises elght independert members from a
variety of sectors including academnia, audit, finance, healthcare and the public sector. It is

resource policies in the key areas of recruitment. remuneration and benefits.

There are four board committees with written terms of reference approved by the Board.
These committees are the Personnel Board, Audit & Risk Management Committee, Medical and
Dental Board. and the Investment Committee. Each committee helms the different aspects of
strategic and operational management and control.

The members of the Board are pald allowances based on the rates set by the Public Service
Division, which ranges from $5.6256 to $22500. The total board member allowances for
FY2018/2017 is $108.688,

Disclosure & Transparency

There are clear policles and procedures for board members and staff to declare, prevent and
address potential or actual conflict of interest. Where conflict of interest arises, they do not
vote or participate in discussions and decision-making on the subject matter.

All staff are expected to uphold the integrity of the Public Service to instil public confidence
and trust by adhering to HPB's Code of Conduct. An Internal Disclosure (whistle-blowing)
policy is also In place to empower staff to report wrongful practices in HPE directly to the
Chairperson of the Audit & Risk Management Committee or to the Chairman of the Board.

Among the top three HFB key executives in FY2016/2017. one key executive recelves
annual remuneration between $500,000 to $700.000, one between $400.000 to $500.000 and
another between $300.000 to $400.000. The annual remuneration includes salary, bonus,
benefits and employers” CPF contributions.

Rasarve Policy Statoment

HPBE manages its reserves judiclously and reviews it annually to ensure long-term financial
sustainability. As at 31 March 2017, our reserves stood at $48.8m (or 21% of HPE's annual

expenditure) and are unrestricted for use to fund capital and operational requirements.
including the funding of deficits as and when they arise.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD
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Statement by directors

Independent auditor's report

Statement of financial position

Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of changes in equity

Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Statemeont by directors

We, Fhilip Lee Sool Chuen and Zee Yoong Kang. on behalf of Health Promotion Board (the
“Board™), do hereby state that. in our opinion:

(1) The sccompanying statement of financlal position. statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto
are drawn up so as to give true and fair view of the finencial position of the Board as at
31 March 2017 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Board for the financial year then ended. and

(i) At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Board will
be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board:

FPhilip Lee Sool Chuen
Chairman

-7

Zee Yoong Kang
Chief Executive Officer

Singapore
23 dune 2017
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I dent auditer's re
For financial year ended 31 March 2017

Independent auditor's report to the member of the Health Promotion Board

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Health Promotion Board (the “Board™). which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Board for the financial
yvear then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion. the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Health Promotion Board Act. Chapter 122B (the “Act”), Charities
Act. Chapter 37 (the “Charities Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (SB-FRSs) s0 as to glve a true and fair view of the financial position of the Board
as at 31 March 2017 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Board for the financial year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our
responsibllities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Board in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statemnents in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the
atatement by Directors set out on page 108.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the filnanclal statements. our responsibility is to read the
other information and. In doing so. consider whether the other information s materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the audit or
otherwise appears 10 be materially misstated. If. based on the work we have performed. we
conclude that there 15 a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financlal statements that give a true and
fair view In accordance with the provisions of the Act and SB-FRSs. and for devising and
maintaining a system of Internal accounting controls sufficlent to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and falr financial statements and (o maintain accountability of assets.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

endent auditor's re
For financial year od 31 March 2017

Independent auditor's report to the member of the Health Promotion Board
Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements (cont'd)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Board's
ability to continue &s a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to golng
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to Hguidate the Board or to cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Board's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
guditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance.
but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exerclse professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain sudit evidence that 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatemnent resulting from fraud 1s higher than for
one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

=0btain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the sudit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriste in the clrcumstances. but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's internal control.

=Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Board's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or.
if such disclosures are lnadequate, o modify our opinlon. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Board o cease to continue as a golng concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events In a manner that achieves falr presemtation.

We communicate with the directors regarding. among other matters. the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficlencies in
internal control that we dentify during our audit.

AMNUAL REPORT 262017
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Indmndnnt auditor's t

Fox financial year ::r:l 31 March 2017

Independent auditor's report to the member of the Health Promotion Board
Reoport on other legal and regulatory requirements

1In our opinion. the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Board
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

{a) the receipt. expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets
by the Board during the year are. in all material respects, in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. and

(b) proper accounting and other records required have been kept. including records of all
assets of the Board whether purchased, donated or otherwise.

The Board did not hold any public fund raising appeals during the financial vear.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with SSAs. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Compliance Audit section of
our report. We are independernt of the Board in accordance with the ACRA Code together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our saudit of the financial statements in
Singapore. and we have fulfilled our ofher ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We balleve that the audit evidence we have oblained ls
sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion on management’s compliance.

Responsibilities of management for compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

Management is responsible for ensuring that the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys
arnd the acquisition and disposal of assels, are in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
This responsibility includes implementing accounting and internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Auditor's responsibilities for the compliance andit

Our responsibility is to express an opinlon on management's compliance based on our audit
of the financial statements. We planned and performed the compliance audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the receipts. expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition
and dlsposal of assets, are in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Dur compliance audit includes obtaining an understanding of the inernal control relevant
to the receipts. expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of
assets. and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements from
non-compliance, if any, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's Internal control. Because of the inherent limitations in any accounting and
internal control system. non-compliances may nevertheless oceur and not be detected.

G oo

Ernst & Young LLF
Fublic Accourtants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

2o dune 2017

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Statomont of financial pozition
As at 31 March 2017

Non-current assets

Property. plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Current assots

Recelvables

Prepayments
Grant recelvables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilitias

Payables and accruals
Grants received in advance

Neot current assets
Non-current liabilities

Deferred capital grants
Obligations in respect of pension scheme

Neot azsots

Equity
Share capital
Accumulated surplus

Note

10

S

2016/2017
¥

6.505.823
0.046.875

11.36&.788

2.53l.882
301,488
15,580,865
115838155

132.383.418

48.214.645
Tr8.060

48,003,608

83,358,718

68.58.880
8. TE2.356

10,561,060
84 3351461

S5.870.054
45,481,407

£4.3351.461

2015/2016
L

6.380.072
0.490.624

15,880,606

1181038
880,806
14.578.820
104 954 450

1£1.554.215

890.Te6.626
LOIT.888

61.744 555

68,600,660

1.084.801
10,456,863

11.541.664
T3.097.602

54,475,840
38.483.843

T3.897.682

The sccompanying accounting policies snd axplanetory noles form an Inlegrel part of the finencial stetements.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of com ive income
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

Income

cervice maintenance income
Interest income

Other income

Donation Income

Exponditure

Staff cost

Programme and markeling expenses

General and administrative expenses
Information technology services and malntenance
Met falr value loss on financial assets

Doficit before grants

Grants

Government operating grants
Non-government operating grants

Deferred government capital grants amortised

Surplus for the financial year,
representing total comprehensive income
for the financial year

The accompenying accounting policles and explangtory noles form an infegral part of the fnencisl stelaments

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Note

13

16

2016/2017
L

1345611
1.425.410
TET.025
1181265

4787311

(B4.182.548)
(98.838.082)
(25,254 180)
(19.518.483)

(228.888.288)

(224.131.978)

254,566,047
214,980
8357.406

235.218.542

11.086.564

2015/2016
-

L3435 273
81&.581

BBl 222
481 280

3,970,356

(EL.B41.510)
(84.234.188)
(24.BBT.TEL
(18.480.872)

(21.6548)

(200.444.968)

(208.874.630)

2131358580
216, 7To0
1L312.858

214.668.044

8,785,414

Statemont of changes in

oquity
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

At 1 April 2016

Issuance of ordinary shares (Note 13)

Surplus for the financlal year
Dividends paid (Note 14)

Tolal comprehensive income

At 31 March 2017

At 1 April 2015
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note 13)

surplus for the financial year

Dividends pald (Note 14)

Tolal comprehensive income

At 31 March 2016

The sccompanying accounting pollcles snd axplanatory nolas form an Integral part of the flnancal stetemeants.

Share
capital

$

o94.475.848

L386.205

S0.870.054

40,826,182

5,047 687

34.473.849

Accumulated

$

58,485,843

11.088.564
(2.080.000)

£.887.564

48 481 407

a0 128,480

B.7T85.414
(2.432.000)

6.561.414

48,483,843

AMNUAL REPORT 262017

Total

73,007,602

1.386.200

11,086,564
(2.088.000)

8,987,064

84 3E1.481

64.048.621

S.047.6597

£.785.414

(2.432.000)

6.361.414

T3.857.602
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statoment of cash flows
For the financial year onded 31 March 2017

Note 2016/2017
3
Cash flows from operating activities
Deficit before grants (224.131.878)
Adjustments for:
Depreclation of property. plant and equipment 4 20081 883
Amortisation of intangibie assels B 4.461.008
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 18.080
and intangible assets
Write-of f of intangible aszets 456,676
Interest income (1.425.410)
Met fair value loss on financial assets -
(218.208.620)
Change In working capital:
Receivables and prepayment (7T04.808)
Fayables and accruals (2.511.883)
Obligations in respect of pension schems (7T34.50T)
Nat cash used in operating activities (222.16L.008)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 1.137T.884
Withdrawal of funds with fund manager -
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 4 (2.308.834)
Purchase of intangible assets 8 (504.038)
Net cash (used in)/gonerated from (1.672.088)
investing activities
Cash flows from financing activity
Government grants recelved 7(a), T(b) 233,218,144
Other grants recelved Tc) 312348
Proceeds from issuance of shares 13 1.388.205
Dividend payment 14 (2.,080.000)
Net cash generated from financing activity 205,638,688
Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents 8.004.703
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
financial year 104,934 480
o 113.630.153

Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the
financial year

2013/2016
L

(206.874.630)

2.832.814
4. 124,063
298180

(812591
21,848

(180.310.518)
bidi. 004

15,311,071
(297.354)

(183.373.948)

404 218
17.865.188
(7T72.668)
(41073801

13.480.128

207.840. 722
185.664
S.047T.657
(2.432.000)

200281073

38.357.284
65.577.186

104,554 450

Tha accompenying accounting policles and explanstory notes form an Infegral pert of the finencisl stalaments

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

1.

Domicile and Activities

Health Fromotion Board (the “Board”) was established on 1 April 2001 under the
provisions of the Health Promotion Board Act (Chapter 122B) (the ~Act™) and is under
the purview of the Ministry of Health. As a statutory board. the Board is subject to
the directions of the Ministry of Health, and ls required to implement policies and
policy changes as determined by its supervisory ministry The Board's registered
office is located at 3 Second Hospital Avenue. Singapore 168837,

The Board is also reglstered as a charity (Registration Nos 01810) under the Charities
Act (Chapter 37) since 17 September 2004.

The principal activities of the Board are to:

(a) advise the Government, either of its own motion or upon request made to it by the
Minister. on all matters connected with the promotion of good health and healthy
lifestyles amongst the people of Singapore. Including the formulation of policies, the
creation of conditions and the provision of public facilities that are conducive to the
promotion of good health and healthy lifestyle amongst {he people of Singapors,;

(b) devise. organise and implement programmes and other activities for or related to
the promotion of good health and healthy lifestyle amongst the people of Singapore.
health education programmes and programmes and other activities for or related to
the prevention or detection of dlseases,

(c) collaborate with any organisation to devise, organise and implement. or to provide
support or assistance to any organisation in devising and implementing any of the
programmes or activities referred to in paragraph 1(bk

(dymonitor and conduct investigations and research into any matter relating to the
health and nutritional statuses of the people of Singapore:

(e) promote a healthy food supply in Singapore.

(f) determine, establish and recommend nutritional standards and dietary guidelines.
and guldelines for the provision of nuiritional information,

(glprovide healthcare services (including medical. dental, health-screening and
immunisation services) to school children and such other persons or class of persons
as the Board thinks fit.

(h) provide consultancy services to Government departments, members of the
healthcare industry and the private sector on matters relating to health education. the
preservation and promotion of health. healthy lifestyles and healthy dietary practices
and the prevention and detection of diseases. and

(1) represent the Government internationally on matters related to or connected with
health education. the preservation and promotion of health and the prevention and
detection of diseases.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the
financial year.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2
2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with the
provislons of the Act and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS™).
SB-FRS Include Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards. Interpretations of
SB-FRS and SB-FRS Guidance Noles as promulgated by the Accountant-General

Basis of meoasurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except as
otherwise described below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. which 1s the Board's
functional currency.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial
vear except In the current financial year. the Board has adopted all the new and revised
standards and interpretation of SB-FRS ("INT SB-FRS") thal are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The adoption of these standards and
interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of
the Board.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Board has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been
Issued but not yet effective:

Deascription

aB-FHS 108 Financial Instruments, Illustrative
Examples, Implementation Guidance and Amend-
ments to Guidance on Other Standards

SB-FRS 1001 Accounting and Disclosure for
Non-Exchange Revenue

SB-FRS 118 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers Illustrative Examples

SB-FRS 110, SB-FRS 28 Amendments to
Effective Date of Amendments to SB-FRS 110
and SB-FRS 28

SB-FRS 115 Amendments to Effective Date of
SB-FRS 119

SB-FRS 116 Leassas Illustrative Exampies and
Amendments to Guidance on Other Standards

SB-FRS 118 Amendments to SB-FRS 115:
Clarifications to EB-FRS 115 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

SB-FRS 102 Amendments to SB-FRS 102:
Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Fayment Transactions

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
To be determined

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2.
2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Standards issued but not yet effective (cont'd)

Except for SB-FRS 108, SBE-FRS 118 and SB-FHS 116, the Board expect that the adoption
of the other standards above will have no material impact on the financial statements
in the period of initial application. The nature of the impending changes in accounting
policy on adoption of FRS 108, FRS 116 and FRS 116 are described below.

ab-FRS 108 Financial Instruments

FRS 109 introduces new requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assels. impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. Financlal assets are
classified according to their comtractual cash flow characteristics and the business
moadel under which they are held. The impairment requirements in FRS 109 are based
on an expected credit loss model and replace the FRS 38 Incurred loss model The Board
is currently assessing the impact of the new standard and plans to adopt the new
slandard on the required effective date.

SB-FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

FRS 115 establishes a flve-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under FRS 115. revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in FRS 118 provide a more structured
approach to measuring and recognising revenue when the promised goods and
BE%EEE are transferred to the customer Le. when performance obligations are
satisfied.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under FRS. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective application is required for annual perlods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, Early adoption is permitted.

The Board is currently assessing the impact of the new standard and plans to adopt the
standard on the required effective date.

ob-FRS 116 Leases

FRS 116 requires lessees to recognise most leases on balance sheets to reflect the rights
to use the leased assets and the assoclated obligations for lease payments as well as the
corresponding interest expense and depreciation charges. The standard includes two
recognition exemption for lessees - leases of "low value® assets and short-term leases.
The new slandard is effective for annual pericds beglnning on or after 1 January
2018,

The Board is currently assessing the impact of the new standard and plans to adopt

the new standard on the required effective date. The Board expects the adoption of the
new standard will result in increase In total assels and tolal liabilities.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2
2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Froperty. plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. subsequent to
recognition. property. plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is recognised as an expense in the
Income and expenditure statement on a stralght-line basis over the estimated useful

lives of each component of property, plant and equipment.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Computers - 3 to & years
Leasehold improvement - 8 years
Furniture and fittings - 8 years
Other equipment - 3 1o 10 years
Medical equipment - 8 years
Motor vehicles - 10 years

Capital work-in-progress Included in property. plant and equipment are not
depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property. plant
and equipment. and are recognised net within other incomesother expenses in the
income and expenditure statement.

Intangible asscts

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Board. which have finite useful llves, are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised in income and expenditure on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to & years. from the date on which they are
avallable for use.

Computer software under developmont

Computer software under development are stated at cost. Expenditure relating to the
capital work-in-progress are capitalised when incurred. No depreciation is provided
until the Intangible assets are ready for use.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statoments
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2.
2.6

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Boards non-financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (*CGU~) is the greater of
its value in use and its falr value less costs to sell In assessing value In use. the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presert value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the assets or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing.
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group
of assels that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of CGU.

An impairment loss I8 recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
income and expenditure statement.

Impalrment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any Indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
ls reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss 18 reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amourt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined. net of depreciation or amortisation. if no impairment loss had been

recognised.
Financial instruments
(a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measaremont

Financial assets are recognised when. and only when, the Board becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Board determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised Initially. they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsoquont measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on thelr classifications
as follows:

Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and recelvables. Subsequent to
initial recognition. loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. less Impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised In income and expenditure when the Iloans and

receivables are derecognised or Iimpaired. and through the
amortisation process.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.7 Financial instruments (cont'd)

(a) Financial assets (cont'd)

Deorccognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to recelve cash
flows from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety. the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration recelved and any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised In other comprehensive Income Is recognised In  income
and expenditure.

(b) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measuromeont

Financial liabilities are recognised when. and only when. the Board becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Board
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised inttially at fair value and in the case of
other financial labilities, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequeont measuremont

After initial recognition. financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in income and
expenditure when the liabilities are derecognised. and through the
amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
ithe effective interest method. Galns and losses are recognised in income and
expenditure when the liabilities are derecognised. and through amortisation
process,

Deorecognition

A financial lability iz derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified. such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new lability. and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts 18 recognised in income and expenditure.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalonts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank. cash placed with Accountant-General
Department and cash on hand.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statoments
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2.
2.9

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that
g financial asset is impalred.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Board first assesses whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant. or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Board determines that no objective evidence
of Impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset. whether
significart or not. it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
ls. or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortised cost has been incurred. the amount of the loss 1s measured as the dif ference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset s original ef fective interest rate. If a loan
has a variable interest rate. the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset 15 reduced through
the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in Income
and expenditure.

When the asset becomes uncollectible. the carrying amount of impalred financial
assets 18 reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account.
the amounts charged to the allowance account are written-off against the carrying
value of the financial assets.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can
include default or delinquency by a debtor. restructuring of an amournt due to the
Board on terms that the Board would not consider otherwise, or indications that a
debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

If In a subsequent period. the amourt of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised. the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date. The amount of reversal Is recognised in income and expenditure.

In assessing collective Impairment. the Board uses historical trends of the
probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred. adjusted
for management's judgemernt as to whether current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested
by historical trends.
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2
2.10

211

2.12

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
Grants

Government grants and contributions recelved by the Board from other
organisations for the purchase of depreciable assets are taken to grants received
in advance account in the first instance. They are taken 1o the deferred capital grants
gccourt upon the utilisation of the grants for the purchase of assets which
are capitalised.

Deferred capital grants are recognised in the income and expendiiure statement
over the periods necessary to match the depreclation and write off of the assets
purchased or donated, with the related grants. Upon the disposal of property. plard
and equipment. the balance of the related deferred capital grants is recognised in the
income and expenditure statement to match the netl book value of the property. plant
and equipment disposed.

Government and other grants received by the Board to meet operating expenses
are recognised as Income in the year these operating expenses were incurred and
ihere i3 reasonable assurance that the Board will comply with the conditions attached
to it. Governmerd grants are accounted for on the accrual basis.

Government grants are grants recelved from government bodles. Including
statutory boards. Funds received from all other organisations are classified as
non-government grants.

Leases

Where the Board has the use of assels under operating leases. payments made
under the leases are recognised in the income and expenditure statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives recelved are
recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense. over the term of the lease,
Contingent rentals are charged to the income and expenditure statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan iz a post-employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions into & separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligstions for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense
in the income and expenditure statemert in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees.

Employee leave entitloment

Employee entitlaments to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees,
A provision is made for the estimated lHability for annual leave as a resull of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Short-term employee benefits

short-term benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A lsbility is recognised for the
amount expected to be pald under short-term cash bonus if the Board has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2.
2.12

2.13

2.14

Summary of significant accounting pelicies (cont'd)

Employoe benefits (cont'd)
Post employmont benofits

Cost of providing defined benefit retirement scheme (the “HFB Penslon Scheme”)
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at least once in three years. The present value of obligation for
all pensionable employees 18 determined by projecting each active employee's
benefits accrued from the starting date of their service with the Board (le. 1
April 2001 up to the valustion date, allowing for salary Increases and the
probability of earller exits, and discounted using a long-term discount rate. The
obligations to exisling pensioners under the HFB Pension Scheme are calculated as
the present value of pensions payable to the pensioners for their remaining lifetime.

Al each valuation date. the tolal present value of obligation is compared 1o the book
amount to determine the actuarial gain or loss. The Board recognises all actuarial
gains and losses arising from post employment benefits in other comprehensive
income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in personnel expenses in
income and expenditure statement.

Fast service cost is recognised Immediately to the extent that the benefils are
already vested since the starting date of the pensionable employees’ service with
the Board.

Reveonue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Board and the revenue can be rellably measured. regardless of
when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
recejved or precelvable, taking Into accourt contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duly

Intorost income

Interest Income 15 recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective
Interest method.

Service maintenance income

Service malntenance Income is I"EEDEI]JEEﬂ when the service is rendered.

Donation income

Donation Income refers Lo contributions of goods or services In support of the Board's
pProgramimeas., Donation-in-kind are measurad at the falr value of the ECI-Dd.E or services
received and are recognised upon delivery of the goods or services.

Other income

Other income refers mainly to clinic services fee, HealthZone admission fee and
course fee. Income is recognised when the service is rendered.

Rolated parties

Related parties are considered to be related to the Board if the Board has direct
and indirect ability to control the party. jointly control or exercise significant
Influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions. or vice versa.
or where the Board and the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
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3

Significant accounting estimates and judgoments

The preparation of the Board's financial statements in conformity with SB-FRSs requires
management to make judgements. astimates and assumptions that af fect the application
of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets. liabilities. income and expenses at
theend of each reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptionsandestimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

Koy sources of estimation unceorfainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation wuncertainty at the end of the reporting period are discussed
below. The Board based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements was prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about the future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Board. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Ponszion exponse

Pension expense is determined wusing certaln actuarial estimates and
assumptions relating to the discourt rate used in wvaluing the defined benefit
obligation and future expectations such as future salary increases, retirement age.
and mortality rate of covered employees. These estimates and assumplions
directly influence the amount recognised in income and expenditure. Further
detalls about the assumptions used and sensitivity analysis are disclosed and
further explained in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Judgements made in accounting policies

In the process of applying sccounting policies, the Board has made the
following judgements which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised In the financial statements:

Government operating grants

Government grants to meet operating expenses are recognised as income
in the income and expenditure statement on the accrual basis in the year
these operating expenses were Incurred and there i reasonable assurance
that the Board will comply with the conditions attached to H. For certain
grants. the governmernt agencies reserve the right to withdraw., withhold or
reduce the amourt of any funds approved but not yet disbursed or to call for
the refund of all funds which have been disbursed to the Board if the conditions
are not met.

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

4.  FProperty, plant and equipment

At 1 April 8018

fior the flmancial

At 31 March
2008 and 1 April

fior the financlal

At 31 March
2017
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At 31 March
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5.

Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 April 2018

Additions

Written off

Transfers

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 20158
Additions

Written off

At 31 March 2017

Accumulated amartization
At 1 April 2018

Amortisation charge for the
finanecial year

Written off
At 51 March 2016 and 1 April 2016

Amortisation charge for the
financial year

Written off
At 31 March 2017

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2017

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Computer
software

43,586,518
4 107,381

(30.500)
B05.TEl

48.5608.864
348,676
(11,676.888)
ST.857. 708

54,084,777

4,124 065
(30.500)

38.078.340

4 481,009
(11.190.212)

Se.048 157

8,480,624

4. 688.615

Computer
software

development

805,761

(808.781)

158.560

158.560

158.560

Total

44,492,073
4.107.581

(30.500)

48, 568.064
o04.036
(11.675.888)
47586118

S4.984.7TTT

4 124.063
(30.,500)

28,078,540

4,461,008
(11.180.212)

Sa.348. 15T

8.480.624

5.046.875

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

Receivables
Note 2016/2017 2015/2016
-3 &
Trade recelvables 227.078 100,288
Amount due from Ministry of Health 287 48T B850
Other receivables 1.681183 B8 138
Security deposits 356,144 365,668
Total recelvables 2.531.882 LIBL038
Add: Cash and cash equivalents 8 113838153 104 834 450
Grants receivables 7(a) 15,580,863 14578820
Total Ioans and recelvables 132.0681.928 120,664 300

Trade recelvables

Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on immediate to 30 days’
terms. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their
fair value at initial recognition.

Amount due from Ministry of Heallh

This amount refers to recoverable costs for payments made on behalf of Ministry of
Health. It is non-trade in nature, non-interest bearing. repayable on demand and to be
settled in cash.

Dther receivables

Included in other receivables are interest recejvable from deposits underthe Centralized
Liquidity Management ("CLM") Framework amounting to $9584.647 (31 March 2016
$867.121). unutilised fund for Workplace Health Grant from outsourced grant admin-
istrator refundable to HPB amounting to £388.778 (31 March 2018: SNil) and Tote Board
Community Healthcare grant paid on behalf of Tote Board amounting to $310.187 (31
March 2016: £Ni1). The amount due from Tote Board is non-trade in nature, non-in-
terest bearing. repayable on demand and to be settled in cash.
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6.

Receivables (cont'd)

Recelvables that are past due but not impaired

The Board has trade receivables amounting to §184 868 (31 March 2016: £11.833) that

are past due at the end of reporting period but not impaired.

These receivables are unsecured and the analyses of their aging at the end of

reporting period is as follows:

2016/2017

3

Less than 30 days 183.018
Past due 31 - 60 days 48
Past due 81 - 80 days 1.280
Past due 81 - 120 days -
More than 120 days 255
154 588

Based on historical default rates. the Board believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary. These receivables mainly arise from customers that have a good payment

record with the Board.

7.  Grant receivables/(grants received in advance)
Grant receivables

The movement of grant receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

Note 2016/2017
-
{a) Government
At beginning of the financtal year 14,578,820
Deferred capital grants 11 181,384
Recognised In the statement of
comprehensive income 8 201,880 220
Grants recelved during the
financial year (201.188.660)
Granl recelvable al end of the 18 880 BES
financial year

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

2015/2016
-3

6.426
D.aEl

86

11.833

2015/2016
$

1:5.808.007
220,743

180,525,976

(189.870.506)
14.578.820

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

7.  Grant receivables/(grants received in advance) (cont'd)

Grants received in advance

The movement in grants recelved in advance during the financial year 15 as follows:

(b) Government

At beginning of the financial year
Grants received during the financial year

Recognlzed in the statement of
comprehensive income

Al end of {he financial year

(e¢) Non-government

At beginning of the flnancial year

Grants recelved during the
financlal year

Recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

At end of the financial year

Total grants received in advance at
end of the financial year

Note

8

2016/2017 2015/2016

§ 3
983668  6.719.287
32030504 18070216

(32.366.,818) (22.814.814)

8. Grant recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Government operating grants

Transferred from grants recelvables
Transferred from grants recelved In advance

Non-government operating grants

Transferred from grants recelved in advance

Nota

Tial

Tic)

B47.435 883,659
34.270 86.371
312.348 186.694
(214.008) (216,786
131620 34,270
TTO.086  LOI7.828
2016/2017 2015/2016
¥ ¥

201980220 180.525.576
Jad66.818 2 220814814

234,566,047 213158380

214 660 al8.Tho
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Notes to the financial statements Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017 For the financial year ended 31 March 2017
9. Cash and cash eguivalents 11. Deferred capital grants
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows consist of the following: Note 2016/2017 2015,/2016
2016/2017 2015/2016 $ S
£ £
At beginning of the financial year 1.084.801 2.176.017
Cash at bank and on hand 268,163 8873 Amount transferred from government grants Tia) 181.504 220,743
Cash placed with Accountant-General's 1276186 2387680
Cepartment 113,812,980 104025777
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement Amount transferred to income and
of cash flows 11359381585 104 6834 450 expenditure statement:
Devoait by Ko SR L e T T C “ — g - to match depreciation of related assets (337.812) (566.813)
posits placed w o neral's Department (*AGD") are centr manage
by AGD under the Centralised Liquidity Management (*CLM") Framework. - to match amortisation of related assets (276.368)  (447.887)
= to match net book value of related assets (23.318) (288.178)
The Board earns interest rate ranging from 1.24% to L48% per annum (2015/2016 cisposcd
LO6% to L46%). (B3T.496) (1.312.889)
Al end of the financlal year B38.680 1,084 801

10. Payables and accrunals

2016/2017 2015/2016

% 3 12. Obligations in respect of pension scheme
The Board operates an unfunded defined retirement benefit plan for certaln employees
Trade bles and accruals 4T 4100933 4D07TE022 under the provisions of the Pension Act (Chapter 266, 2004, 2004 Revised Edition).
e s The pension fund was set up by the Board on 1 April 200L.
Amount due to the Ministry of Health 233,614 221570
Security deposits B70.008 27 034 In managing the risk arising from the pension scheme. the Board maintains

sufficlent cash balance to support benefit payments to employess who participated
Total financial lishilities carried at amortised cost 48214843 B0, T26.626 in the plan over the life of the plan. The benefit payment obligations are Influenced
by discount rate. future salary increases and life expectancy of employees. The
pension scheme is a closed scheme for which there shall be no new entrants to

the scheme.
Trade payables
The Board performed an actuarial valuation to determine the llability of the Board
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on immediste to 60 In respect of its defined retirement benefit plans. The amount of contribution is
days' terms. based on the actuarial valuation performed by Actuarial Consulting Group in
May 20185,
Amount due to Ministry of Health
2016/2017 2015/2016
This amount refers to rental recelved by the Board on behalf of the Ministry of
Health. They are non-interest bearing. unsecured and to be settled in cash. & L
Present value of unfunded obligations 8722556  10.456.865
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Obligations in respect of pension schome (cont'd)
Principal actuarial assumptions (cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis
A B basiz pointz change in discount rate at the reporting date would have

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

12. Obligations in respect of pension scheme (cont'd) 12,

Movements in the net liabllity recognised in the statement of financial position are
as follows:

2016/2017 2015/2016 increased/decreazed) surplus for the financial year by the amounts shown below.
B % This analysizs azsumes that all other variables remain constant:
25 bp 25 bp
incroase docreoase
Al beginning of the financial year 10.456.863 10.7B4.217 £ %
Amounts recognised in the income 31 March 2017
and expenditure 308.001 343 3580
(LO43808) (640712 Effect on service cost B17 (817)
Benefits paid . .
iy Effect on defined benefit obligation 262,504 (262.504)
At end of the financial year 0,722,358  10.456.8683
31 Marech 2016
The amounts recognised In the statement of comprehensive income are as follows: Effect on service cost 1307 (1.307)
Effect on defined benefit obligation 282,535 (282.338)
2016,/2017 2015/2016
b} h ] A 25 basis points change in future salary increment rate at the reporting date
would have (decreasedWincreased surplus for the year by the amountz shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant:
Current service costs 40,870 85.3861 25 bp 25bp
Interest on obligation 268131 278,008 increase decrease
Total included in staff costs under other benefits § 5
and allowances S08.001 543,550 31 March 2017
Effect on service cost (82) B2
Principal actuarial assumptions Effect on defined benefit obligation (9.722) 8.722
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date: 31 March 2016
2016/2017 2015/2016 Effect on service cost (131} 131
" a Effect on defined benefit obligation (10.487) 10,457
Discount rate &.88 2.62

A 10 percent change in mortality rate at the reporting date would have increased/ldecreased)
surphus for the year by the amounts shown below. Thiz analyzis assumes that all other
variables remain constant:

10% 10%
Assumplions regarding fulure morialily are based on published mortality lables. NCredso docrease
The expected retirement age is at 82 years old (2018/2016- 82 years old). % £
At 31 March 2017. the weighted average duration of the benefit payment obligation 31 March 2017
Wit 13,4 years (31 March S006: 174 years) Effect on service cost 368 (368)
Effect on defined benefit obligation 178,002 (176,002)
31 March 2016
Effect on service cost 588 (588)
Effect on defined benefit obligation 188224 (188.224)
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13.

11.

135.

Share capital
2016/2017 201572016
No. of No. of
shares g shares g

Issued and fully paids
At beginning of the

financial year 54473840 34473849 30926182 30926182
Izsuance during the
financial year L396208 1306208 3647687 3547687

At end of the financlal year 35,870,064 35870084 34473840 34473840

During the filnancial year., the DBoard Issued 1386208  shares
(2016/2018: 3.847.687 shares) to the Minister for Finance under Section 22A of the
Health Promotion Board Act for a ftotal consideration of $1.398.208
(2016/20168: $3.547.687).

The shareholder is entitled to recelve dividends as and when declared by the Board.
The ordinary shares have no par value.

Dividends paid
2016/2017 2013/2016
$ §
Final dividend paid In respect of current financial year 2080000 2432000

Otheor Income

2016/2017 2015/2016

$ ¥

Clinic services fee 460.863 488,048
HealthZone admission fee 118,751 106,429
Course fee 889,303 TLIOT
Others 118.108 202,637
TET.025 BEl.228

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

16.

17.

Staff costs
2016/2017 2015/2016
L §
Salaries and wages B8.585.343 B7.438.0588
Central Provident Fund contributions 8.070.184 8,741, THR
Staff welfare and development 4.114.881 3180812
Mher benefils and allowances 2412127 2.480.68]1
84,182,545 81.841 510

Related party transactions

During the {financial year, the Board engaged Iin varlous transactions in the
ordinary course of its operation with entities related to the Board at prevailing
prices or on customary terms and conditions. These transactions could hawve been
replaced with transactions with other parties on similar terms and conditions.

Nature and amount of individually significant transactions

2016/2017 2015/2016

¥ §
Rental of premises from Ministry of Health 4 126,865 4 126,966
Information technology services from Government
Technology Agency 806866827 4700082
Information technology services from Ministry of
Education TT3.538 B02.856
Information technology services from National
Library Board TEE.113 847 384
Training services from Civil Service College 482 441 614.810

Heoy management personnel compensation

Key management personnel of the Board are those persons having the authority
and responsibility for planning. directing and controlling the activities of the Board.

Key management personnel compensation Is as follows:

2016/2017 2015/2016

L 5

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 4552470 4,084 569
Post employment benefits 268183 ao0,604
4 B21.683 4.318.973
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18.

Commitments
Capital commitments

Capital commitments approved but not provided for in the financial statements are
as follows:

2016/2017 2015/2016

& &
Commitments in respect of contracts placed as at
reporting date 118,000 1.688.000
Lease commitmoents

Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in statement of
comprehensive income for the financlal year ended 31 March 2017 amounted
to $4.423.718 (2018/2016: $4.354.021).

Commitments in relation to operating leases contracted for at the reporting date
but not recognised as liabilities. are payable as follows:

2016/2017 2015/2016

g -

Payable:
Within 1 yvear 4 125.965 4 126,086
After 1 year but within & years - 4 126,066
4 125.968 8253 832

Other commitments - Information Technology (IT) cost

Commitments In relation to IT cost contracted for at the reporting date bul not
recognised as liabilities are as follows:

2016/2017 2015/2016

5 B

Payable:
Within 1 year 196,434 248,030
After 1 year but within 5 years 211.920 410,354
410,354 659,384

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

19,

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Overview

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Board. The Board has a
system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks
occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The management monitors the Board's
risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and
cortrol is achieved,

The Board has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Liquidity risk
- Credit risk
- Interest rate risk

This note presents information about the Board's exposure to each of the above risks.
the Board's objective, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financlal statements.

(a) Liquidity risk

The Board has minimal exposure to liquidity risk as its operations are funded
by government grants. The Board has ensured sufficient liquidity through the
holding of highly liquid assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents at all
times to meet s financial obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Board's financial
gssetl and liabilities at the end of reporting period based on contractual

undiscounted payments:
One r One
or n-rm;
2016/2017 2015/2016
£ L3
Financial assets

Recelvables 2,531,888 L151.058
Cash and cash equivalents 1383091535 104034 480
Granis recelvables 15580803 14 578,820

Total financial assets 132,061,888 120664 300

Fi ial liabiliites

(48214 643) (60.726.826)
83857280 68.837.685

Fayables and accruals
Net financial assets

AMNUAL REPORT 262017
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19, Financial risk management objectives and poelicies (cont'd)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Board.

Al the reporting date. the maxXimum exposure to credit risk 1s represented
by the carryving amount of each financlal asset in the statement of
flnancial position.

Surplus cash and fixed deposils are placed with banks and financial institutions.
which are regulated.

Concentration of credit risk relating 1o recelvables and grant recelvables is
limited since they are recoverable from Ministries and Government Agencies

Interest rate risk

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the interest bearing financial
instruments are as follows:
2016/2017 2015/2016
g £

Cash placed with Accountant-General's
Department 12012000 1048267777

Sensitivity analysis

A 35 basis points change in interest rates at the reporting date would have
increased/(decreased) surplus for the year by the amounts shown below. This
analysls assumes that all other variables remain constant:

25 bp 25 bp

-1 decrease

s 1

As at 31 March 2017 284, TE2 (2B4.TER)
As at 31 March 20168 282,314 (282 314)

HEALTH PROMOTICN BOARD

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2017

20.

21.

Capital managemeant

The Board defines "capital” as share capilal and accumiilated surplus. The Board's
policy 15 1o maintain a strong capital base 1o safeguard the abillly 1o meet its long-term
neads and o malntain creditor and market confidence.

There were no changes In the Board's capital management approach during the
financial year. The Board is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Authorisation of finanecial statemonts

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 were authorized for
issue by the Board on 23 June 2017,
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The Health Promotion Board's Annual Report FY2016/2017 editorial team would like
our heartfelt thanks to the following colleagues and their family members for

EXPress
appearing in the Annual Report for FY2016/2017.

Our HPB Talents

War on Diabetos
deremy. Sumasni, Swee Suet

NurtureSG
dake. Jo-Ann. Melizsa

Shaping Healthy Bohaviours in Schools

Shaping Healthy Bohaviours at Workplaces
Ram. Reagan. Zhen

Shaping Hoalthy Bohaviours in the Community
Haley. N Slong Yeo. Tee Hin

Sha Healthy Behaviours through Technole

Shaping Healthy Bohaviours from Within
Amnfym Jeremy, Li Ping
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